GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

DATE: June 13, 2000

TO: Board of Directors
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

FROM: Dick Wendt
Legal Counsel

SUBJECT: Assignment of contracts/agreements related to new convention center from the
Grand Action Committee to CAA

Background: Various aspects of the planning and development of a new convention center have
been undertaken prior to the establishment of the CAA through the Grand Action Committee. In
connection therewith, Grand Action entered into several professional services agreements which
are appropriate for assignment to the CAA. The Chairperson of the Board has worked with legal
counsel to accomplish assignment of these agreements, and each of the assignments and consents
to assignment have been fully signed.

Summary: Pursuant to the Board's authorization, the following contracts with respect to the
new convention center have been assigned from the Grand Action Committee ("Grand Action")
to the CAA and assumed by the CAA:

Letter of Agreement between Grand Action and Erhardt Hunt for construction management and
pre-construction services, expiring 11/30/00.

Construction/Budget Advisor Agreement between Grand Action and Dale H. Sommers to assist
with construction and budget consulting in connection with the development and construction of
the new convention center, expiring November 30, 2000, with an option to extend from
December 1, 2000 to completion of the startup phase (approximately 12/31/2005).

Letter of Agreement between Grand Action and J.P. Gray Consulting, Inc., to assist in a
technical capacity in connection with the development and construction of the new convention
center for an indefinite term.

Letter of Agreement between Grand Action and URS Greiner Woodward-Clyde, Consultants of
Michigan, Inc., to prepare concept plans including elevators for reconstruction of entry of
parking area and modifications to site plan and streetscape.



Engineering Services Agreement between Grand Action and Black & Veatch Corporation to
provide professional engineering services in connection with the reconstruction/relocation of a
sanitary trunk sewer from Pearl Street to approximately Fairbanks Street and the
reconstruction/relocation of a sixty-inch storm sewer; and reconstruction/realignment of Monroe
Avenue.

Asbestos and Lead Survey Agreement between Grand Action and Materials Testing Consultants,
Inc. to conduct an asbestos and lead survey of building infrastructures.

Final Geo-technical Investigation Agreement between Grand Action and Materials Testing
Consultants, Inc. to provide assurance that the bedrock in the vicinity of the Exhibit Hall will
support the lighter column loads and provide additional deep rock data for the design of deep
foundation elements.

Phase II Environmental Site Assessment and Subsurface Soil and Ground Water Evaluation
Agreement between Grand Action and Materials Testing Consultants, Inc. to conduct a Phase II
Environmental Site Assessment consisting of a subsurface soil and ground water evaluation at
the Grand Center, Hall of Justice and Police Department.

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect for Special Services (AIA
Document B727) between Grand Action and Progressive Architecture Engineering Planning,
Inc., d/b/a Progressive AE, to provide building programming, pre-design site investigation and
schematic design of the Grand Rapids Convention Center expansion and renovation.

GRAPIDS 61448-2 96207



City-County Liaison Committee
May 30, 2000 Page |

X

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

MINUTES OF THE CITY-COUNTY LIAISON COMMITTEE
May 30, 2000

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by the Acting Chair, Tom Postmus at 7:35 a.m.,
in the County Administration Building Board Room.

Attendance

Members Present: Jack Boelema
Robert Dean
Jerry O. Kooiman
Tom Postmus
Lynn Rabaut
Roy L. Schmidt

Members Absent: None

Staff/Others: Kurt Kimball
Robert White
Rich MacKeigan
Richard Wendt
Daryl Delabbio
James Day
Eileen Pierce

Mr. Postmus called the meeting to order and indicated that the first order of
business was to elect a Chair.

M. Boelema, supported by Mr. Dean, moved to nominate Mr. Postmus as Chair
of the City-County Liaison Committee to the Grand Rapids-Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority. Motion carried.

Review of Arena and Grand Center 2000-2001 Budgets

Rich MacKeigan introduced himself as the General Manager of SMG .

He noted to the group that the Convention/Arena Authority has already reviewed
the budgets. He also said that any questions concerning the budgets could be
easily answered by Bob White or Dave Waichum.



City-County Liaison Committee
May 30, 2000 Page 2

Arena Budget
Mr. MacKeigan explained that the first page is an overview of the fiscal year.

There is an increase in concert and family events, and 80 of 163 events are sports-
related.

Mr. Postmus asked how many events the Arena could handle.

Mr. MacKeigan said that they operate under an industry standard called “yield
management”. The goal is to optimize bookings. He further explained that
although sports events hold inventory on bookings that might otherwise be used
for another function, that there are benefits of having sports tenants. Two of
which are staffing consistency, and predictable revenue. In answer to the
question, they would hold as many events as physically possible. It is feasible to
host two events in one day. The busiest season held 187 events.

Mr. Wendt stated that for an arena of this size, that the industry average was about
120 events.

Mr. MacKeigan said that even 100 events is considered positive for this type of
venue. He stated that business for this market is very strong in Grand Rapids. In
the trade publication Amusement Business, the Arena was ranked nationally for
the last two years as the top-grossing arena for its size. He said he did not expect
that to happen for this year, but possibly next year.

Mr. Boelema asked how long the Arena has been operating.

Mr. MacKeigan answered that is has been four years.

Mr. Schmidt commented that involving SMG was the best decision ever made.
He said the reason that the Arena was so successful was due to the fact that SMG
delivered what they said they would do.

Mr. MacKeigan moved on to the indirect expense summary section and noted that
the last item (salaries allocated) was bracketed for accounting purposes. He also
explained that many of the capital and maintenance expenses are higher when the
arena is slower. This happens because the best time to devote energy to capital
and maintenance issues is when there is less activity.

Ms. Rabaut asked what the contracting security included.

Mr. MacKeigan said the security includes door guards and other general security.

Ms. Rabaut asked about local traffic control.

Mr. MacKeigan said it was not reflected in the statement because there is a
commitment from the Downtown Development Authority (DDA).



City-County Liaison Committee
May 30, 2000 Page 3

Mr. Kimball said that the DDA is billed for overtime expenses.
Mr. MacKeigan said that the commitment was for one year.
Ms. Rabaut asked who would do it after the year was over.

Mr. Wendt stated that it is an issue for the CAA to address.

Mr. MacKeigan said that when this issue came up a year ago, research in
comparable facilities elsewhere showed that in some cases the City will pay or the
management group will pay. He further stated that whoever derives profit from
the parking usually pays for traffic control.

Mr. Boelema asked about travel expenses.

Mr. MacKeigan explained that SMG corporate offices are in Philadelphia and that
corporate representatives come for regular audits, contract maintenance and other
reasons.

Mr. Postmus commented that the total of indirect expenses in the summary does
not agree with the figure on the Statement of Income.

Mr. MacKeigan indicated that he would verify the figures with the Director of
Finance.

Mr. MacKeigan explained the management fee calculation and stated that
incentive fees cannot exceed the base fee. He further stated that when SMG
shares in revenue, everyone does better because it provides more incentive for
bookings.

Mr. Postmus asked what causes variances in booking.

Mr. MacK eigan said that there are “blips” in the industry and that they cannot
control the inventory despite best efforts.

Mr. MacKeigan explained the capital projects page, indicating that the amount for
refurbishing suites was due to damage from steaming chafing dishes. Under
security, he explained that the main lobby is hard to control due to wide access, so
it is costly to have staff positioned in the lobby. The gate system should alleviate
these costs and provide better security.

Mr. MacKeigan went to the event summary section and informed the group that
concerts are the bread and butter of the Arena’s existence.



City-County Liaison Committee
May 30, 2000 Page 4

Mr. Bolema asked if they were hard to schedule.

Mr. MacKeigan said in this market it is going well, but they can be difficult to
book.

Mr. MacKeigan then explained the balance sheet and commented that the
allowance for bad debts was very low (mostly due to cash control).

Mr. Kooiman moved to support the budget.

Mr. Wendt said that this committee’s responsibility is only to recommend to the
City Commission and County Board and suggested to wait for all three budgets to
be presented prior to making a motion.

Mr. Kooiman withdrew the motion.
Grand Center

Mr. MacKeigan then presented the Grand Center budget. He mentioned that the
loss of Meijer and Gordon Food Service will cause a dip for this year.

Mr. Boelema asked if the size of the facility was a problem.

Mr. MacKeigan stated that Gordon Food Service said it was a definite problem.
Meijer is stopping the event for other reasons.

Mr. MacKeigan covered budget highlights and said this is an extremely strong
year. He also noted that the budget was prepared in February, and that the
estimated actual was represented as a $110,000 deficit, but now that figure would
be about $300,000 positive.

Mr. Postmus pointed out that there was a $10 discrepancy between the indirect
expenses on the income statement and the total on the indirect expenses summary.

Mr. MacKeigan noted that the last line on the balance sheet refers to the City
since the document was prepared prior to the formation of the Authority.

Authority Operating/Capital Budget (14-Month )

Mr. White then explained the 14-Month Operating Budget. He said that the CAA
will set up three accounts: operations, replacement and construction. The $1
million line item under Facility Capital Transfer reflects a continuation of the
DDA pledge (each year for 10 years). The $35 million under construction is an
estimate. The County/City Staff Services line item would be effective after Jan 1,
2001 since there is no billing for staff time through December 2000.



City-County Liaison Committee
May 30, 2000 Page 5

There being no other questions, Mr. Postmus asked for a motion.

b. Mpr. Boelema, supported by Mr. Dean moved to recommend to the City
Commission and County Board the adoption of the SMG Van Andel Arena
FY2001 Operating Budget and Capital Schedules, the SMG Grand Center
FY2001 Operating Budget and Capital Schedules, and the CAA 14-Month
Operating/Capital Budget with corrected discrepancies. Motion carried.

5.  Miscellaneous

Mr. Wendt took a moment to explain the roles and responsibilities of the Liaison
Committee as outlined in the bylaws. He said that the Committee will not need to
schedule regular meetings, and should plan on meeting only when necessary. He
suggested that the Committee might meet this time of year for the next year’s
budget.

There being no other business, Mr. Postmus adjourned the meeting.

Tom Postmus
Acting Chair

/elp



VanAndel Arena
Operating Policies

June 30, 2000




VanAndel Arena
Operating Policies

June 30, 2000

During the course of its ownership and operation of the VanAndel Arena, the
Downtown Development Authority adopted several policies in regards to its operation.
The various agreements transferring the operation of the Arena to the Convention/Arena
Authority (CAA) provide that these policies will remain in place until they are modified,
replaced or rescinded by the CAA. This document is a compilation of all those policies
that are in effect as of June 30, 2000.

James H. Knack
Executive Director
Downtown Development Authority



INDEX

PAGE
Booking Policy (4/12/95) & AttaChment ..ottt e eens 1
Community Event Rental POliCy (1/13/99) ..c.covminiiiniiiniiitriencneccsneseeessesentessesesiesessssmsssssessssessesenses 2
Hoops Share of Season Ticket Revenues (4/15/98) .......cuviviiiiiciiniiicniiricisenissesesssessenssssssesenes 3
Premium Seat & Suite Rate Schedule (4/14/99) & Attachment.........c.coceueeeeererecreieererierreecreeeeeneesssssrcsnseereene 4
Premium Seat Policy (11/13/96) & Attachment............cccoiviiiniiiiiciciniiininicniinicnseseseeesessssess e 5
Priority Ticketing Policies (10/8/97) & AtaChmeNnt ...........cccoveviivmiiemreinerieenecrecssetsss e sse s 6
Rental Rate Schedule (5/10/95)....ccvreriieinniiiniiiiniiieinieiieneesessetssessessssassssestessssssssssessosssesssssessssenssssessonss 8
Scheduling Protocol (3/11/98) & AHAChIMENt ........ccciviiiiniiirinrisiiiiiitnee s esenesnsseanes 9
SMG Logo — Approval to use in trade publication (8/9/95)........cccouvvvirvnninnniiiiircee s 10
Tobacco Use & Advertising in Arena - Prohibited (6/12/96) .........cccovveverrvencnernircrnniiiineicinneeeseenenes 11
Tour Fees Collected by SMG — To be donated to the Heartside Park Project (3/12/97)......cccovvvimseirernnresuennns 12

Tour Rates ($2.00 Adult, $.50 Children & Seniors, $5.00 max per family) (6/11/97).....cccccovrvrivenirernrnnrennnns 13



Booking Policy (4/12/95) - Attachment

“A proposed interim booking policy has been drafted by SMG under the direction of the Operations Sub-
Committee. It has been approved by the Operations Sub-Committee and GA/Building Committee. It
comes to the Authority for review and approval. This booking policy sets forth the priorities for events.
It was agreed that if an owner, other than the DDA emerges, the new owner can then continue the
proposed policy or made amendments as it deems appropriate.

Mayor Logie questioned, “what if the booking people want to make a change and it would be in violation
of this policy? Who do they then turn t0o”? Jim Knack stated that he will check into this. Mayor Logie
indicated that he does not wants to lose an opportunity because this policy is somewhat rigid, suggesting
the owner might act as an appeal or review board on specific events that do not quite fit the policy.

Mayor John Logie, supported by Robert Buffham moved to approve the Booking Policy/Procedures.
Motion carried.”

Page 1



March 22, 1995

GRAND ACTION/DDA ARENA BUILDING COMMITTEE
OPERATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE

INTERIM POLICY

Subject: Booking Policy/Procedures

Purpose; Provide guidelines to arena management for the booking of events at the
arena. It is recognized that any new owner of the arena may want to revise these
procedures. It is also recognized that the owner's experience may lead to revisions.

Policy:

1. The overall objective is to provide for a wide variety of events appealing to the
various interests of the larger Grand Rapids community.

2. Booking procedures should be structured and utilized to maximize the net
operating revenues of the arena.

3. Booking priority shall be based primarily upon the necessary lead time
required for the event; i.e.: '
a. National "family” events such as a circus, Disney on Ice, etc.
b. A hockey, basketball, or other sports team using the arena for their

home schedule (multi-year tenants).

c. Single, miscellaneous events such as wrestling, truck pulls, etc.
d. Concerts
Booking will generally be on a "first-come, first-served" basis, with the
flexibility to reschedule when the opportunity warrants.

5.

The following General Guidelines will be utilized relative to holding dates:

a. Tenants that usually have more than a one-year agreement to play in
the facility. (Example: Circus, Disney on Ice, Ice Capades, etc.)

1) These tenants usually have multi-year agreements and play in
the same time period each year. Protection windows must be
factored in when holding dates on these types of performances.
(Note: When doing these bookings in the November to May



2)

period requires planning in this initial year because of the
planned hockey and basketball tenants.) May want to do a couple

of family shows during the sports season, but want to balance
with time the teams are on the road.

These play dates are usually confirmed and held in the book prior
to giving the sports teams their tentative dates.

CBA, IHL teams, etc.

1)

2)

These tenants have multi-year agreements and usually have first
call on dates. However, the teams and their leagues are familiar
with scheduling around certain recurring family shows.

Sometime early in the calendar year, the two teams' tentative
dates for next season will be given to the teams and the leagues.
The firm team schedules are usually available by July, which
allows you to release the extra holds and start working with the

short-term building tenants (e.g. wrestling, truck pulls, concerts,
etc.)

Wrestling, Truck Pulls, and Single Miscellaneous Events

1)

2)

3)

4)

After you have the firm family show and the teams' schedules,
you have the dates available that you spend the majority of time
filling.

Generally, the wrestling promoter will want to do somewhere
between a low of three to a high of six shows a year. This is the
type of event that you like to do doubles. Having this type of
event in the afternoon or in the evening after a basketball game,
for example, will help open up more available dates.

Truck pulls will generally want a Friday and Saturday or a
Saturday and Sunday. Also, move in and move out time becomes

a consideration. We may want to confirm these dates prior to
giving the teams their tentative dates.

When working with the teams, we need to get some weekend
dates for potential wrestling, miscellaneous events, and concerts.

Concerts

1)

Next to the teams' dates, the concert buéiness could be the second
largest tenant in the arena relative to income and date usage.



2)

3)

The first step after firming up the family shows, teams' schedules,
and perhaps wrestling, is to work with the predominant promoter

or promoters in the market to secure good dates for potential
concerts.

In order to maintain an open book, and prevent the promoter or
promoters from blocking out events, the arena manager should
adhere to the following guidelines:

A promoter may hold a date in their name.

When we get a call for the same date, we accept a second
hold on that date. At that time, we go back to the

promoter with the first hold and get the name of the act
that the date is being held for. ' :

If the promoter with the first hold is challenged by the
promoter with the second hold, the promoter in the first
position must go to contract and put up a deposit within
three business days of the challenge or give up the first
hold. (Note: The act contracted for should be the same
one given to you when the second hold occurred.)



Community Event Rental Policy (1/13/99)

“Richard MacKeigan reported that some requests have been received from tenants regarding the
possibility of the Arena sponsoring charitable events by waiving rent. He noted that it is not uncommon
to have this included in tenant contracts. He recommends that this be done for the three tenants with the
conditions noted in the memo.

Jim Knack stated that staff is recommending approval of SMG’s proposal with the exception of Clause #8
because the DDA could decided to do this at a later date if they wish without including it here. Also, the
references to the DDA and SMG should be deleted from Clause #7, leaving the Van Andel Arena to be
identified as the partner of the event.

Motion: Jim Rinck, supported by Casey Wondergem, moved to approve a policy regarding sponsorship
of community events as follows:

L.

7.

Each tenant of the arena (Hoops, Rampage, and Griffins) will be provided one (1) usage of the Arena
at no rental fee per year for a charitable event.

All expenses associated with these potential events will be the responsibility of the tenant and will be
identified so within a contract.

The event must have all proceeds going to a recognized foundation and/or charity.
The date will be at the sole discretion of SMG as an agent of the DDA.
Approval of events will be at the sole discretion of SMG as an agent of the DDA.

There will be no carrying over of events from year to year should an event not be held by one of the
tenants for whatever reason (inclusive of dates not being available).

The VanAndel Arena will be identified as a partner of the event.

Motion carried.”

Page 2



Hoops Share of Season Ticket Revenues (4/15/98)

“Hoops Request for Contract Modifications - Craig Liston reported that the Hoops have withdrawn their
request for a modification in the contract for the just completed season and for reduced rent on weekday
games. They are, however, requesting that, if the Hoops receive fewer than eleven weekend evening
dates for games, the season ticket criteria would not be in effect and the Hoops would receive the full
15% of those revenues. Staff recommends approval of this request.

In response to a question from Mayor Logie, Mr. Liston indicated that, historically, the Hoops have had
eight or nine weekend evening dates. Jim Knack added that this request works with the protocol that has
been worked out with the Griffins which now gives the Hoops the opportunity for twelve weekend
evening dates.

Motion: Mayor Logie, supported by Patrick Malone, moved to approve adjustment of the criteria for
premium seating fees whereby, if the Hoops receive fewer than eleven weekend evening dates for games,
the season ticket criteria will not be in effect and the Hoops will receive the full 15% of those revenues;
and, if the Hoops receive eleven or more weekend evening dates, all season ticket provisions would
apply, and the Hoops would be required to meet the criteria established in order to receive the full share.
Motion carried.”

Page 3



Premium Seat & Suite Rate Schedule (4/14/99)- Attachment

“Richard MacKeigan reported that the information included in the meeting materials has been
slightly revised from what was presented last month. Mr. MacKeigan has met with the tenants and
with representatives of Grand Action on this issue. They have two very different views, but he feels
that this recommendation blends the two views well. Staff is eager to move forward with the
renewals as soon as possible. The tenants have agreed to this plan and he thinks Grand Action feels
some of their issues have been addressed.

Mayor Logie stated that he feels this is a good compromise and that it respects the original donors
and the contributions they put into the Arena.

David Frey, of Grand Action, stated that Grand Action feels, mainly in regard to the suites, there is
still a difference of opinion on what the amount should be. He respects Mr. MacKeigan’s views,
however, and appreciates his willingness to work with them on this.

Motion: Mayor Logie, supported by Casey Wondergem, moved to approve the Premium Seat/Suite

Rate Schedule as presented and included as Attachment A to these minutes. Motion carried. John
Canepa abstained.”

Page 4



ATTACHMENT A

Van Andel Arena
Premium Seat/Suite Renewal Proposal

Premmm S eat Renewal Orzomal Donor

$25,000
$27,000
$29,000

T
ORI

$26,000° :

$27,000

$29,000 $26,500.%:"

$31,000 $27,000 .- .
$28,000 . .
$28,000
$30,000 " -

$31,000



Additional Information

2 Parking passes will be included for all events where tickets are requested by surte

-holders at no addrtronal charge

A 50 cent/ticket surcharge will be added to each order for Premium Seats as well as
Suites. The cost of this fee is absorbed by the end user, not necessarily the Premium
or Suite licensee as often these individuals make their tickets available for purchase to -
business associates and/or friends. This also ensures that someone who does not

regularly take advantage of their licensed benefits is charged accordingly, based on a
user pay system.



Premium Seat Policy (11/13/96) - Attachment

“Craig Liston reported that he met with Grand Action yesterday regarding the complaints that
have been received from premium seat holders and explained to them the plan for handling
premium seats in the future. The premium seat moves were made to accommodate promoters’
and bands’ needs. A letter has now been prepared to send to premium and club seat holders
stating that their seats will not be moved in the future. If this means a show will refuse to play
Grand Rapids, SMG will seek direction from the DDA on how to proceed.

Mayor Logie stated that promoters are used to dictating the terms in these deals. His view is that
he would rather lose a promotion than kowtow to them. There is language in the premium seat
contracts which allows for moving their seats if it is due to the event staging, etc. Mayor Logie
would like to give SMG a clear message that the DDA is not interested in submitting to blackmail
and that the DDA will uphold the promises made to the seatholders.

David Cassard asked how much moving of seats had taken place. Mr. Liston indicated that about
200 to 300 out of 1,800 per event were relocated to other seats--sometimes outside of the premium
seat area.

Jim Rinck asked how many promotions might be lost. Mr. Liston indicated that this is unknown.
This should affect only the concert events of which we expect about 15 shows per year. We could
possibly lose as much as 15% to 20% of those. Mr. Rinck asked if the shows we may lose would
move to another area facility? Mr. Liston stated that these events would probably just not come to
the area. Mr. Rinck then asked how much money was involved if we lost two or three concerts.
Mr. Liston stated that concerts will bring in anywhere from $40,000 to $60,000 per event, and the
demand for tickets has been overwhelming thus far.

Mr. Rinck asked if premium seat holders could be reimbursed somehow for the use of their seats.
Mr. Liston indicated that we may be able to offer the seat to the seat holders and, if they are
refused by the seatholders, offer them to promoters. Mayor Logie noted that premiums are
offered on airlines in order to bump people and open up additional seats. A policy of this sort
would be acceptable to him.

Casey Wondergem stated that he felt this was a good policy as it will rid the DDA of the cloud
that has been over the opening of the Arena.

Motion: Vemne Barry, supported by Jim Rinck, moved approval of the policy outlined in the letter
to be sent to premium and club seat holders (Attachment A). Motion carried.”

Page 5



"ATTACHMENT A

Diallbatsd N/)3/a¢ DDA

THE CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS
YMENT, CONYENTION & 5P0RTS FACITIS

November 11, 1996

Dear ;

As a premium or club seat holder, you are an important part of the Van Andel Arena, Without your
generous contribution, one could argue that this beautiful Arena woluld not be here today. In order
to better serve you, we have Instituted the following improvements:

A) We will hire another person to manage the premium and club seats. With over 1,800
premium and club seats, the demand for tickets has been incredible and much moare than one
person can handle. Therefore, Elmer Straub will continue to handle the premium seats

purchased through Grand. Actiori ‘and our new. person will handls all of the club seats

purchased through elther the Griffins or Hoops. We hopeto have this person on board in the
~ next couple of weeks. : '

B) We will no longer allow users of the Tacility to hold tickets in the premium seat areas. Please
be aware that this policy will result in some shows hot playing Grand Rapids. If this happens
we will get direction from the DDA on how to proceed. Should the DDA request that we

proceed with the show, we will Inform Yyou on the event notice sheet of the locations affected
and where they are to be moyed.

C) The South West entrance will be designated the Premium Seat Holder antrance starting
November 15, 1996. This Is the entrance right around the comer from the Suite holder
entrance. Only premium seat holders will be allowed to utilize this entrance. Itis a fire exit
and there are no escalators or elevators at this entrance. However, if you or any of your
guests, have special needs you can continue to utilize the Suite holder entrance. THIS
ENTRANCE WILL BE OPERATIONAL ON NOVEMBER 15, 1996.

We hope these improvements will enhance your experiences at the Van Andel Arena. We have
had a very busy and exciting first month and look forward to many more to come. We are
constantly trying improve the service we provide our premium and club seat halders, and are
confident these improvements will be examples of that effort. :

If you have any questions on this or any other Arena issue, please feel free to call me at 616-742-
6600. ’ ) :

Sincerely,

Kevin M. Scheibler
Director of Sales and Marketing

Andol Atana

Grand Center
fulten wast



Priority Ticketing Policies (10/8/97) - Attachment

“Mr. Liston indicated that a proposed Priority Ticketing Policy was included in the meeting
materials. In response to a question from Mayor Logie, Mr. Liston clarified that the seating map
shows that, if necessary, premium seatholders could be moved to any unused seats within the pink
(premium seat) section or into the blue section seats.

Mayor Logie stated that he would like to see the language changed in Section C2. He would like
it to say, “the premium seatholder will be provided with” rather than “every effort will be made.”
Jim Rinck stated that if this Section were changed as the Mayor suggested, than the language in
Section C-3 is not necessary. Mr. Rinck likes the language as it is, rather than making a guarantee
that everyone will be accommodated.

Mr. Rinck asked if his understanding was correct, that some of the tickets that Mr. Liston’s
information shows as going to the promoters actually were given to radio stations, etc., and ended
up being given away to the public in some fashion. Mr. Liston indicated this was correct.

Vemne Barry explained that the promoter/entertainer controls the tickets because they are,
basically, renting the facility for their event. SMG does not control who gets what seats.

In response to a question from Mayor Logie, Craig Liston stated that the wristband system seemed
to work well for the Elton John concert. It eliminates the need for anyone to camp out waiting for
tickets to go on sale. Mayor Logie asked if it was made clear to everyone that, even though 1,000
wristbands are given out, there may not be that many seats. Mr. Liston stated that each person
who got a wristband was given a sheet of rules which said that the wristband only guarantees
them a place in line, it doesn’t guarantee that you will get a seat/ticket. The wristband system will
probably be used for only the really popular shows rather than every event. Verne Barry noted
that people need to present themselves at the same outlet where they received their wristband
when tickets go on sale. Ifthere is a computer glitch at that outlet, there could be a problem so we
need to be sure that all computers are up and ready when ticket sales start.

It was noted that the limit on the number of tickets that can be purchased by an individual is
usually set by the artist or promoter.

Jim Knack reported that a priority ticketing system is being considered to be used in place of the
premium seats as the current agreements expire. This system would not guarantee a particular
seat, but the individual would be guaranteed the opportunity to purchase a ticket for each event.
Veme Barry noted that the marketing and advertising of this program needs to reflect this change.
Mayor Logie stated that some people will still have a preference for a particular seat and an effort
should be made to provide this.

In response to a question from John Canepa, it was indicated that the agreements with both Ticket
Master and Tickets Plus expire in June, 1998. Jim Knack reported that an RFP is currently being
prepared with the assumption that it makes sense to have one provider for both the Grand Center
and the Arena. It was noted that it may be helpful to have proposals prepared for each facility
individually and together.

Page 6



David Cassard asked if the Priority Ticketing Policies were really a clarification of the current
premium seat agreements. Mr. Liston indicated that this was correct. Mr. Cassard noted that a
change in fee was also indicated and should be part of the approval.

Casey Wondergem indicated that someone should meet with the Grand Rapids Press reporters and
educate them on this policy if it is approved today. Verne Barry stated that he thought SMG
would be talking with the Press.

Motion: Jim Rinck, supported by David Cassard, moved approval of the Van Andel Arena
Priority Ticketing Policies, attached to these minutes as Attachment A; and, further, approval of
the annual fee of $500 per seat plus a $100 per seat processing fee, subject to an annual review by
the DDA. Motion carried.”

Page 7



ATTACHMENT A

VAN ANDEL ARENA
GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN

PRIORITY TICKETING POLICIES

The following policies outline the practices and procedures to be followed when the Arena Manager is
administering the priority ticketing seats in the Van Andel Arena. Any deviation from the stated policy
will require the approval of the Downtown Development Authority.

A. Definition

The seats in the “Priority Ticketing” area are delineated as follows: The Arena has sold 1,064 seats in
sections 107, 108, 109, 121, 122, 123. The annual lease rate on those seats is $250.00. As a condition of
the lease with the Griffins and the Hoops, those tenants have the right to sell an additional 500 seats and
227 seats, respectively, out of the remaining seats in the aforementioned areas. The annual lease rate on
those seats is $500.00. These seat holders have the option of purchasing their seats for every public event

in the facility prior to the event going on sale to the general public. If they do not respond by the stated
deadline, those seats are opened for sale to the public.

The contract with the premium seat holders reads as follows:

“The DDA agrees to provide the following services and rights to SEATHOLDER with respect to the said
SEAT:

A. SEATHOLDER shall be entitled to the right-of-first-refusal of the said SEAT(s) during
all ticketed events throughout the term of this AGREEMENT, subject to the terms and conditions
contained herein. SEATHOLDER not guaranteed leased seat for free, non-ticketed or general admission
events.

B. 1) SEATHOLDER shall have the opportunity to purchase tickets for the SEAT for all
ticketed events presented in the arena per contract year and duration of this AGREEMENT hereunder. The
tickets for all arena events will be purchased at the sole expense of the SEATHOLDER. The price of such
tickets shall be the price set for the section in which the SEAT is located.

2) SEATHOLDER must respond to the Van Andel Arena Box Office in the allotted
time for each event in order to secure the SEAT(s). Failure to respond in allotted time will result in the
tickets being made available to the general public for sale or the event producer for their use.

3) SMG will do everything in its power to provide similar seats in the Premium Seat
area should your seats not be available for a particular event.

C. The operational and management obligations of the DDA will be implemented by SMG.

B. Provision Related to Production Requirements

From time to time, seats will not be accessible due to production requirements of a show. Some of these
instances include, but are not limited to, the following: projectors sitting in the seating area, sound
equipment blocking the sightlines, stage is positioned in a way that the seats are backstage. In the case of
seats being killed for production requirements, the Arena Manager will use best efforts to accommodate the
affected seatholders in other seats in the arena, as provided in the contract.

C. Provision Related to Show Ticket Requirements

From time to time, a promoter, agent, record label or artist will have requirements for a number of tickets
to fulfill existing contractual commitments. In these cases, the Arena Manager will follow these
guidelines:



I The Arena Manager will protect the rights of the premium seatholders whenever
possible. The other parties will be encouraged to select

seats from those premium seats which have been
refused or other seats which are available. This should b

e the case for the majority of the shows which
visit the arena.

2 When the above policy could result in the Arena losing an event, the Arena Manager may

allow up to 20% of the seats in the premium seat area to be selected by the promoter or user of the facility.
If these seats are selected, the Arena Manager will relocate

to the event staging area.

3. If displaced Arena premium seatholders ¢
those seatholders will be contacted and offered free tickets
premium seat area.

an not be accommodated in the above manner,
to the event to accept seating outside the

D. Notification

This policy will be sent to all premium seat holde

ts with an offer to refund their current year’s lease
payment if the policy is not acceptable to them. '

E. New Fees

For any new premium seat holders, the annual fees will be set at $500.00 per seat
processing fee to cover the costs of credit cards, mailings and notifications. This
annual review by the Downtown Development Authori

plus 2 $100.00 per seat
amount is subject to



!

Rl

=1 ;

i) g 7

i g 20
EE =
ﬁ:z g =E

o = ———

3 3 E5E

i e ——

g =5z

o e f

f 9ol -
o = i i
: . [: » -8 -4
fE=gzt S B :
ihmpEssanan =1 k= H ]
_ECE Rl 21 1 S BogE B

CRSTIZOS a

JESS3EAS 8 't : H

1 | 2 | -l

CEEzs5azd [=; .S._q

11t

2

tutfroage -

4

L41)

<

tgannypifig-s

[danlhds

Vi B3 11 s g1

fa

ol

Prak =
Blve

y 3%

H =31

H r3=1

Y sitmi ot pededu oty

$ESEz35eEgae

2o e 12 b g ot
T._—--AJ—L.
TESSSsad

wioiee b o |

EEE

% j:

i

1}u s

Lo mel-

FTITITI T T IIrOD

T-XTIX

| rerrorooorerToeme

phen g g A g S ABGRAARARASRASRAL

Relocation Seats

) EYCELLEY CTO

Lt

ey

[§753n¢ehentd

Jann

A

L o
3 C L':.
: &
= =
3 €
C ] o
1= ] =
=
.
= = ]
= = = =
| o ———ty
=
=
= = 2
I
| I3 C
| = » - |
; & =
et e evave ol
e
3 €
L= 3 C
= = ¢
= C
T E = =
TS E =3
H
L]
!
1
!
4
1
4
;
j
]
i
—) [ mm—

“(TTIITYIC

.

.'-S?%*".?l\/,
b

18 pp
TITIY

ST

kxe
34 CHEE
dE HaEE
=5 HERE
E= aleie=)
hadd g
=% H ;q:

T

rererLaLt [fl.'l'

LELLELIILICS:

CLITCOLOIMTLINICLLO

Arorsrroasroeersean

ar o’

' )
I~

A
:
:
—"l—-:--

sundua;

YITT

B

—_——

Ty sy

~+

m _'lih u:rumn._um

s

Meerraenn

HH 3
2 A1
o B e 'Eﬁa’

1) -

= H
+ <EEH
s : el
H |alafataie] ST
.;--_- .'..,unli Sl ol 2oy
E---.—u:_: t bt :""u_

{ bt | 3
CocognusonpacsE i
bef=t=t= : £
: 3 H

Lo

Odd 2o di 1P ol
1]




Rental Rate Schedule (5/10/95)

“Rental Rate Structure Proposal — Jim Knack presented for information the proposed rental
structure, which was adopted by the Building Committee. He suggested that members act on this
proposal. He has also asked SMG to make two amendments to the following proposal: rental
rates of a minimum rent of $5,000 or 12% of gross ticket sales plus expenses, this will very for
multiple day performances; co-promotional arrangements wherein the building brings the building
and building-related expenses, and the promoter brings the event and event-related expenses.
Common expenses (advertising, credit card, etc.) will come off the top, and net will be split based
upon a pre-determined percentage; and team deals under separate cover.

Amendment #1 — consider raising the $5,000 minimum, and amendment #2 — identify other areas
in the arena that could also be rented out.

Jim Rinck, supported by Robert Buffham moved that the proposed Rental Structure be approved.
Motion carried.”

Page 8



Scheduling Protocol (3/11/98) - Attachment

“Craig Liston reported that an agreement has been reached among the parties as shown by the
information provided in the meeting materials. SMG, DP Fox and the Hoops have all agreed to
this document pending DDA approval. The agreement provides, depending on the number of
weekend dates available, that there is a predetermined amount available to each team.

Motion: Jim Rinck, supported by David Cassard, moved to approve the Scheduling Protocol as
presented and attached to these minutes as Attachment A. Motion carried.”

Page 9



"~ ATTACHMENT A
MEMORANDUM

‘!

TO: Craig Liston (SMG) and Bob Przybysz (Hoops)
FROM: Scott Gorsline (Griffins) '

DATE: March 2, 1998 /g % A

RE: | Scheduling Protocol

On Tuesday, February 3, 1998, the three of us and Bob Sack met to discuss
scheduling issues that relate to the Hoops, the Griffins, and Van Andel Arena. At the
meeting, we discussed a variety of issues and ideas, with the goal being to provide the
Hoops with Friday and Saturday evening dates during their season. We also sought to
address Bob Przybysz’s concern regarding a conflict of interest between the Griffins and
the Rampage. After several hours of discussion, we came up with several ideas that
require cooperation between all of the.parties involved .—the Griffins/International
Hockey League; the Hoops/Continental Basketball Association; and SMG, as
scheduling agent for the Arena. The following summarizes our discussion and is meant
to serve as scheduling guidelines for all of the parties involved:

1. CBA Scheduling Process. The biggest issue currently affecting the number of
weekend evening dates scheduled by the Hoops is the timing of the release of the
CBA and IHL schedules, with the CBA schedule coming out before the IHL
schedule. This is a major problem for the Hoops in that if the CBA waited until the
IHL schedule was released, all of the weekend dates that the Griffins submit to the
IHL for the scheduling process that are not actually scheduled for Griffins home
games could be released and claimed by the Hoops. However, because the CBA
schedule comes out before the IHL schedule, the Hoops are unable to claim the dates
released by the Griffins. The issue is similar to NBA/IHL scheduling, whereby the
IHL waits to do its scheduling until after the NBA schedule is released because of
the fact that several IHL tenants are secondary tenants in NBA buildings. If the
Hoops could lobby the CBA and convince the CBA to schedule after the IHL, the
Hoops would almost always end up with at least 10-12 weekend evening dates, and
likely more than 12. Bob Przybysz agreed to aggressively continue his efforts to
lobby for a change in the timing of the CBA scheduling process. . The CBA has
indicated that Van Andel Arena is the kind of building the CBA wants to be in. If
that is the case, the CBA needs to recognize that its scheduling process does not
work well in buildings like Van Andel Arend, which not only has an IHL tenant, but
which also attracts a much larger number of family shows and concerts than most of
the other CBA arenas, thereby leaving fewer weekend dates for the Hoops.
Date Changes by the Hoops. Given the CBA timing issue detailed above, it is not
possible for the Hoops to know up front how many evening weekend dates the
Hoops will have access to. However, the CBA may permit the Hoops to change
scheduled dates after the release of the CBA schedule, upon payment by the Hoops
of a fee of $1,000 per date change. Therefore, after the IHL schedule comes out and



1

the Griffins release a significant number of weekend q _
take advantage of the CBA date change rules in order to;change scheduled weekday
games to €vening weekend dates. Th
- Grand Ragidggon Wayne Scheduling- € parties alsg discussed another jssye
relating tg the CBA and the IHL, which coulq help to assyre the Hoops of at least 1.2
additiona] weekend dates, The idea relates to Fort Wayne, the other city that has an
arena with a CBA and an IHL tenant, The Griffins have agreed to talk to the IHT,
d the Hoops have agreed to approach the CBA, regarding Working togethe
schedule the Griffins in Fort Wayne on weekend dates when the Fury are in Grand
Rapids Playing the Hoops. This would involve the IHT, working to schedule the
Griffins § Fort Wayne on weekend dates that have been held by the Griffins, which
would .

r to

scheduled as home dates for the Hoops.
. IH Timing and Procedural Issues. The Griffins and the Hoops have also agr?.ed to
work together to mtage of certain timing and Procedural issyes relating to

the THL scheduling process. For example, the Griffins are required to prioritize the
dates that the Griffins submit to the IHL. If the Hoops submit to SMG and the CBA



day, In addition, the Griffins will work to share preliminary scheduling information
with the Hoops as soon as a preliminary IHL schedule becomes available (as long as
this sharing of information is permitted by the IHL). In this way, the Hoops may be
able to submit dates to the CBA that the Hoops are relatively sure will not be
scheduled by the IHL for the Griffina as weekend dates (although there is obviously
no assurance that the dates reserved for the Griffins in a preliminary schedule will
remain constant once the IHL schedule is finglized). Flnally, if the IHL preliminary
schedule is released and the Griffins have more than 26 Friday/Saturday evening
dates on the i achedule, the Griffins will approach the IHL in an effort to
reduce to 26 the number of Friday/Saturday evening dates that the Griffins have
under the final IHL schedule; provided, however, that the Griffins can give no
assurance that such a request will be complied with by the IHL. '

Scheduling Process. The procedures set forth in this memorandum are meant to
describe a scheduling process for the parties to follow, but this process is not meant
to alter the legal rights of any of the parties under their leases with the DDA. The
parties do, however, agree that the process set forth above has been agreed to by all
of the parties as a process that is fair to the Griffins, the Hoops, and the Arena.
Finally, the parties understand that there is no guarantee that the Hoops will end up
with a specified number of evening weekend dates as a result of this scheduling

Prm
Craig Listori Robert A. Preybysz
General Manager, Van Andel Arena CEO, Grand Rapids Hoops

Vice Presiderif, Grand Rapids Griffins



teduce 3 26 the Tumber of Friday/Sattuday €Vening dateg that the Griffing haye
lmderﬂ'teﬁzmﬂﬂ.ac}wdlﬂt; Provided, however, the Grigsip, i
+ BSSUrance ¢4 Buch a request will be complied with by the Iy .
7. SCbgdgligg 53. The Procedures pot forth in thig Memorandym, aTe Mmeant tq .
describe 4 5c}>eduling pracess for the parties to follow, pyyy this process i not meant
o alter ¢4 legal righy of any of the Parties under thg;, leases yop, the DDA, T},
0,

With g g Number of €vening weekend dates gg g Tesult of thi, scheduung
Procegs

Craig Liston _ Robert 4 Przybys,

Genezq) Manage,, Van Ange; Arena CEO, Grang Rapids Hoops

Scott ], Gorsline

Vice P.residmt, Grand Rapids Griffing



SMG Logo — Approval to use in trade publication (8/9/95)

“Jim Knack reported that SMG is requesting approval to identify themselves as the manager of
the arena in advertising in trade publications. Jim noted that approving the use of SMG’s logo in
advertising would not preclude the DDA from changing the arena manager at a later date, and he
recommends that the DDA approve their request.

Motion: John Canepa, supported by James Rinck, moved approval of SMG’s request to include
the SMG logo in trade publication advertising. Motion carried.”

Page 10



Tobacco Use & Advertising of Tobacco in Arena — Prohibited (6/12/96)

“Jim Knack reported that he was contacted by Krista Schaafsma, Coordinator of the “SmokeFree
Class of 20007, as to whether the Arena would allow smoking. A packet of letters received from
students was passed around for members’ viewing. The “SmokeFree Class of 2000” is made up
of a group of eighth graders from the Grand Rapids Christian schools who have made a
commitment to not smoke during their high school years. This issue was reviewed by the
Operations Committee, and it is their recommendation that there be no tobacco use or advertising
within the Arena. They also recommend that a site be designated for smoking outside the arena
building.

Motion: Casey Wondergem, supported by Dick VanderMolen, moved that the Downtown
Development Authority, as owner of the Van Andel Arena, hereby prohibits the use of tobacco
within the Arena as well as the advertising of tobacco products within the arena; and that SMG, as
Manager of the Arena, be instructed to establish an area outside of the Arena building for
smoking. Motion carried.

Dick VanderMolen suggested that the smoking area not be located near an entrance. Jim Gray
indicated that they have looked at the areas that could possibly be designated for smoking. The

plaza, east of the Fulton Street entrances, is probably going to be the best place for the smoking
area.”

Page 11



Tour Fees Collected by SMG — To be donated to the Heartside Park Project (3/12/97)

“Craig Liston reported that SMG staff have been inundated with requests for tours since the
opening of the Arena, and they need to justify the staff time spent on this. The recommendation is
to charge $3 for adults, $1 for children 2 - 12 years old, and under 2 years old free. They also
propose that the money collected be donated to a local Heartside organization.

John Canepa asked what type of groups are requesting the tours. Mr. Liston indicated that they
are requested by various organizations, school groups, individuals, and out of town visitors. He
also noted that these fees are typical of what is being charged by others. For example, Meijer
Gardens charges $1 per child for the butterfly exhibit.

Casey Wondergem indicated that he liked the idea of donating the money generated. Verne Barry
suggested that the Heartside Park Project be considered for the donations because it is a
community-wide project. Other charities could be considered at a later time. Mayor Logie stated
that the DDA would need to hear back as to where the funds are going. Casey Wondergem asked
if the charity shouldn’t be selected by the DDA.

Motion: Casey Wondergem, supported by John Canepa, moved to approve the tour schedule and
fees as recommended by SMG and further moved that any funds collected are to be donated to the
Heartside Park Project until such time as the DDA directs otherwise. Motion carried.”

Page 12



Tour Rates ($2.00 Adult, $.50 Children & Seniors, $5.00 max per family) (6/11/97)

“Craig Liston reported that establishing a fee for arena tours actually increased the number of
tours being given. There has been some negative feedback on the cost, especially for families.
Therefore, it is recommended that the rate structure be revised.

Motion: Mayor Logie, supported by John Canepa, moved that the rate structure for Arena tours
be revised as follows:

Adults $2.00
Children and Seniors $0.50
Max. per family $5.00

Motion carried.”

Page 13



yulr

SESQUICENTENNIAL
DATE: June 27, 2000
TO: Steve Heacock, Chai

Grand Rapids 7’ t £ éntion/Arena Authority
/
FROM: Bill Cole, P
City Englines

SUBJECT: Reconstruction of Monroe Avenue from Pearl Street to 350’ North of
Trowbridge Street, Pearl Street from Campau Avenue to Monroe
Avenue, and Michigan Street from the Grand River to Monroe
Avenue (East Side Sanitary Trunk Sewer)

Background: Bids were received on June 13, 2000 for the above-captioned project.
The Consultant Engineer’s estimate is $11,088,068.02 and Diversco Construction
Company (Diversco) submitted the low bid of $10,540,600.25 with 3.9% MBE and 1.1%
WBE participation. Diversco requested a waiver for MBE participation for this project.
The Equal Opportunity Department (EOD) reviewed this request for waiver, and
determined that Diversco had not made a good faith effort, but further recommended
that an exception be sought given the factors of project schedule, policy and project
cost. The EOD presented this matter to the Community Relations Commission (CRC).
The CRC reviewed Diversco’s efforts regarding MBE patrticipation and indicated that
they would be willing to consider an Exception to the MMWBE Policy/Administrative
Guidelines if Diversco could demonstrate and was successful in its efforts to obtain
additional MBE participation without increasing its bid price. Diversco was able to
obtain additional MBE participation resulting in a total MBE participation of 8%. The
CRC reviewed these efforts and did not grant an Exception. In accordance with the
M/WBE Administrative Guidelines, the City Commission, serving as the Committee on
Appeals has reversed the decision of the Community Relations Commission and
granted an Exception. This Exception allows the City/Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention Arena/Authority (CAA) to consider Diversco’s bid for contract award. This
project provides for the reconstruction of Monroe Avenue and various utilities in
anticipation of the new Convention Center. Due to the availability of grant funds, this
contract will be with the City.

The Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (CAA) previously
accepted assignment of a contract with Black & Veatch, Inc. (B&V) to provide
professional services in connection with this project, awarded a contract to DVT
Electric, Inc. (DVT) for work in connection with street lighting and City
telecommunications in Ottawa Avenue (Ottawa Bypass) and awarded a contract to
Geotech, Inc. (Geotech) to install the City’s telecommunication cables in the duct
system as part of the overall Ottawa Bypass project. The Ottawa Bypass project
included items to place wire for telecommunications and high voltage conductors for




street lighting in Pearl Street from Ottawa Avenue to Monroe Avenue. It was anticipated that
these wires and conductors would be removed when the Monroe Avenue sewer was placed at
the Pearl Street/Monroe Avenue intersection.

It was anticipated that, prior to the placement of the sewer, it would be necessary to place street
lighting/telecommunication facilities in the Monroe Center Phase |l project and across Monroe
Avenue, south of Pearl Street. At this time, the Monroe Center Phase Il project has advanced
to a point where these street lighting/telecommunication facilities can now be placed in that
project and across Monroe Avenue south of Pearl Street, instead of in Pearl Street. A portion of
the necessary conduits in the Monroe Center Phase Il project are included in that contract as
awarded by the Downtown Development Authority (DDA). It is necessary to extend these
conduits across Monroe Avenue, south of Pearl Street. DVT, under its contract with the CAA,
will install the necessary wires/conductors.

The City Commission took the following actions in connection with the above-captioned project
at its meeting of June 27, 2000:

Awarded the construction contract to Diversco in the amount of $10,540,600.25.
Approved an areaway agreement with Olds Manor, Inc. outlining the conditions and
financial responsibilities of the parties in connection with the abandonment of an
areaway.

e Approved an agreement with Amway Hotel Corporation (Amway) recognizing
Amway's contribution of cost in the amount of $300,000 and releasing Amway of its
liability for the existing sewer located underneath its building, upon completion of the
sewer project and abandonment of the existing sewer.

e Accepted a purchase order from Consumers Energy recognizing Consumers
Energy’s contribution of cost in the amount of $459,022 for Consumers Energy
related work items.

e Approved the project budget and authorized estimated total expenditures in the
amount of $12,313,844 which covers the cost of the various items as referenced in
Exhibit A.

The approval of the aforesaid actions by the City is contingent upon approval by the CAA of its
share of project costs and action items as referenced herein.

Recommendations: It is recommended that the CAA take the following actions:

e Authorize B&V to proceed with the construction engineering/inspection phase
services for this project at a cost of $702,000.

¢ Authorize an increase in the scope of work for Geotech to perform work related to
installation of telecommunication facilities for this project, including performing/sub-
contracting the work related to the installation of ducts across Monroe Avenue, south
of Pearl Street, in the amount of $130,075.

e Authorize the City of Grand Rapids to enter into a construction contract for the
above-captioned project and concur in the award of said contract to Diversco
Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $10,540,600.25.

o Authorize the CAA’s share of costs for this project in an estimated total amount of
$9,964,277, which includes the cost of the aforesaid services to be performed by
B&V and Geotech, and includes the CAA’s share of overall project costs including
the construction contract, street lighting/traffic signal force account work, testing,



public information program, televising of the construction site, administration and
contingencies/incentives. This amount ($9,964,277) includes $1,828,600 previously
approved by the CAA and $938,630 for the aforesaid B&V and Geotech
services/work. Also, it is anticipated that the CAA will be reimbursed a portion of its
share of costs for this project from the EPA STAG grant. A summary of the project
budget is as referenced in Exhibit A.

It is further recommended that the Chairperson of the CAA be authorized to execute the
necessary change orders to the agreements with B&V and Geotech in connection with the
aforesaid services, after approval of the same by the CAA’s Legal Counsel. Also, as the project
proceeds through construction, it is recommended that the City Engineer be authorized to
negotiate any other necessary change order(s) in connection with these services, and execute
the same upon approval of the Grand Rapids City Manager and the Kent County Administrator
(or their designees). The City Engineer’s Office will provide administration services for this
project. The City will periodically invoice the CAA for its share of costs for the various aspects
of the project, including any necessary change orders in connection therewith, as the project
proceeds through construction, taking into consideration the City's prorated share of cost for
B&V's ani@rotech’s services.

BC/D
Attachment

cc Kurt Kimball
Eric DelLong
Don Spencer
Pat Bush
Jay Steffen
Don Endres
Ed Krzeminski
Val Lazdins
Ellen James
Rick DeVries
Steve Hitch
Daryl Delabbio, Kent County
Dale Sommers, CAA
Dick Wendt, Dickinson Wright

t:\caa2000\convention center
062800
#99005



Reconstruction of Monroe Avenue from Pearl Street to 350° North of Trowbridge Street,
Pearl Street from Campau Avenue to Monroe Avenue, and Michigan Street from the Grand
River to Monroe Avenue (East Side Sanitary Trunk Sewer)

Exhibit "A"

Recommended Project Budget

PREVIOUSLY CAA Clty
APPROVED THIS THIS
Sources of Funds BUDGET BY CAA ACTION ACTION
Convention/Arena Authority
Direct Incurred $2,767,230 $1,828,600 $938,630 2
Transfer to City $5,772,047 $5,772,047 *
EPA STAG grant $1,425,000 $1.426000 !
Convention/Arena Authority Total $9,964,277 $7,197,047
City of Grand Rapids
Street fund $401,368 . $401,368
Sewer System fund $1,838,323 $1,838,323
Sidewalk Revolving fund $118,085 $118,085
City of Grand Rapids Total $2,357,775 $2,357,775
Amway Corporation $300,000 $300,000 *
Consumers Energy $459,022 $459,022 *
Clean Michigan Initiative grant $2,000,000 $2,000,000 !
TOTAL REVENUE $15,081,074 $1.828,600 $938,630 $12,313,844
Uses of Funds
Construction
DVT Electric $624,608 $624,608
GeoTech - Ottawa Bypass $139,160 $139,160
Diversco Construction $10,540,600 $10,540,600
GeoTech - Monroe Avenue $130,075 $130,075 2
Street Lighting - Force Account $45,000 $5,000 $40,000
Traffic Signal - Force Account $170,000 $10,000 $160,000
Engineering Fees -
Preliminary $150,968 $150,968 $0 $0
Design $539,000 $539,000 $0 $0
Construction/Inspection $760,000 $58,000 $702,000 ?
Construction Testing $3,000 $3,000 $0 $0
Public information Program $50,000 $11,500 $0 $38,500
Televising of Construction Site $500 $500 $0
Administration $341,465 $41,224 $21,300 $278,941
Contingencies/Incentive $1,586,698 $245,640 $85,255 $1,255,803
TOTAL EXPENSES $15,081,074 $1,828,600 $938,630 $12,313,844
! City's Sewer fund will be reimbursed as project proceeds through construction
2 City will reimburse the CAA for the City's share of preliminary, design and construction engineering/inspection

services and Geotech's Monroe Center work estimated at $540,409.



840 | abed

00°Z56'0% s | ooy s | oozss'oy $| oo s | ooszv'ie s | 009 $ | coviL'oe s | oot s| szo GADS pue % . voeoiddE
00°668'29 $los2 $ | o0'ezL'sr $ | 05¢ $ | oogre'os $ 1009 $ | 00'z0L'es $]002L $ gee's 13NN Japnb pue qind Gupsixe aaowey| i
00°0£8'S4 $ [ ooe2 $ | oo'ozs's s | oos $ | 00°05Z'LL $ | 00'sZ s | oo'09s'e $ {00 s 069 14NN "B .2} AJIBN PUnoJBIOpUN (I PUE UOPUEQY| OV
=]
00°000'H $ | 0006, $ | 00°000' $ | co'ooy $ | 0o"000'01 $ | 00005 $ | 000008 $ | 00°00F $ 0z va ® Saien P poy 1 ee
. e e . et . ¥ . ("eAv oiuop SO+€ UoQEss)
00°000'C $ | 00000 $ | 000082 $ | 00°005'C $ | 00005y $ | 00°00S'Y $ | 00005 $ | 00005 $ 3 s JRia1E) IAMOS LUCSS .9 - Uogereaxd Jojepsanyl S5
o s it s s o oo it (enuaay|
00°000'9LL $ | 00'000'92L  $ | 00°000'LL $| 0000022 | 00°000'SL $ | 00'000'sL  $ | 60°000'GZ $ [ 0o000'sc  $ 3 N OO £1491 Uoneis) Jequieys uogoun| wiag| 5
- . s it nan e’ i s (enuany
00°000°'86 $ | oooo0's6  $ | 00°000'LL $ | 0000022  $ | 00°000'6L $ | 00°000's2  $ | 00°000'SZ $ | 000006z $ 3 s S0IUON G1+6 UoREIS) s9queyd vogounf uucsg]  9F
ot . o et ' i nfin . (ped 1000 XS S2+0)
00°000'H $ [ oo'co0'ct  $ | 00°000'8 $ | co000'8 $ | 00°000'sZ $ | 0000062 $ | 00°000'S $ | 00°000'G $ 3 st UOREIE) SOMSS ULIDYS LbG 1P ) UORSRULIDD o] ST
00°000°9% $ | o0'000'9F  $ | 00°000'CH ${ 000002+ $ | 00°000'sC $ | 00'000'sZ  $ | 000002 $ | 00000z s 3 3 BB Op+< uoRels) ejppes edid sjesouon 95| TF
00°000'0£2 $ | oo'000'0sZz  $ | 00°000'69 $ [ 0000069  $ | 00°000'SL $ | 000000°6L.  $| 00°000'Z6 $ | oo'000'zs  $ 3 s1 EBIUOIN 0940 UOREIS) JONM PURID G EBN0 98| E°
I oot on o A st s nnn [EX L
00°000'0LL $ | 00'000'0LL  $ | 00°000'6S $ [ 00°000'65  $ | 00°000'sS $ | 00000'¢s  $| 0000005 $ | 00000'0s S ¢ 5] S0+Z1 UoRmS) [ouuns Auian 3e uogesoes wears]  OF
_y e At s A it o . S (e0uuon G0+21
00°000'68 ¢ | 000006 $ { 00°000'09 $ | 0000009  $ | 00°000'%E $ | 00000'%¢  $| 00°000'sZ $ | 0000082 3 Y uones) Bussaso jouung Aupniemes wues 4|
00°009'99 $ | 00°008"% $ | 00°069'eS $ | 0oost't $ | 00°009'38 $ | 00°008't $ | 00°005'¢S $ | 00°005'L $ 13 v3 v-S Ejeq Jod Ujseq yied|  o¢
000022 3 | 00°009' $ | 00°000°22 $ | 00°005'S $ | 00°000'0Z $ | 00'000's $ | 00°000°02 $ | 00°'000's $ 2 va |-S egeq Jod sjoyuew uos ssjewep L 62
00°00%'LL 00°008‘ $ [ 00°009'6 $ | 0o'00Z'e $ | 0o'o0sol $ | 00°005°c $ | 00°000°6 $ | 00’000’ $ € v3 1-S 1=39Q s3d sjoyuetu uucss Jaewep 8| 82
000051 $ | 00'0os's $ | 00°000°0L $ | 00'000'C $ | 00°005'2L $ | 000052 $ | 00'0sZ't1 $ | 00052 $ S v3 }-S 1=meQ Jod sjoyuew uuas Jeewep 5| /2
00'00L 'ty $ | oo'00t'2 $ | 00°005'LE $ | 00°005'} s | 00’0088 $ | 00°008'L $ | 00°005'LE $ | 00005t $ 12 va 1-S e3() Jod sjoyuew uuas Jaowep b 92
i o . o - it 't . (9 309ys uo rejep sod uonoes o) vZ-S
00°000'¥Z $ | 00000y $ | 60°008's2 $ [ 00°008'Y $ | 0000012 $ | oo'00s'e $ | 00°000't2 $ | 00°005'e $ 9 V3 |10 ed semes seqswerp abrel 1o) sjoyuew uwols| 5
00°000°S $ | 000006 $ | 0o'00s's $ [ 000058 $ | 00°005'6 $ | 00'005's $ | 00000t ¢ [ ooo00'st  $ 3 va syebdey 9¢ [1e3su] pue yswnd| ¢z
000009 $ | 00‘'000'e $ { 00°000°V} _ $ [ bo'00s's $ | 00°000'€k $ | 00'005's $ | 00°000'22 $ [ o0'c00'tL  § Zz va ojebde vz jigsu) pue yswnd| €2
o . b Y 4 o 4 » ‘ - . . ey Jamas
00°00V'Z $ | 00°00¥'C $ | 00°005'L $ | 00°005"} $ | 00°008'} $ | 00°008'L $ | 00°00¢ $ | 00005 $ 3 v3 sepewerp o] ‘woRosuUCo 300q pue a0 .zl &
v, o 4, o 4 . 1] - (1 o (] . o iemas
000007 $ | oo'000'z $ | 00002t $ | 00002's $ | 00005t $ | 00°005't $ | oo'osy $ | 00'05Y $ L va Jayeurerp ofre] ‘uogoeuucs Joogq pue o bz Y
. 0 - ‘ o (] . (1 - 4 oy ‘ o - JMeS
00°008"L $ | 00008'L $ | 00°000't $ [ 00000t $ [ 00°002't $ | 00°00Z'L $ | o000v $ | o000 $ 3 v3 Josourerp ofsE] ‘uopoeulsD J0oq pue aicd gt 0%
o 0 . . . [} - - { ey + 0y 1 o JoMas)
000058 $ | oo00L'L $ | oo'osL'e $ | oo'0SL $ | 00'000's $ | 00'000'L $ | oo'0sL't $ | ooose $ [ va Jejewerp 968} ‘uogoeuoo 100q pue 1o gy| S
o Ly o 3 - . o . '} o o . Jamas
00°00%'t} $ | 00'009't $ | 00'00¥'s $ | oo009 $ | 00002'2 $ | 0o'008 ${ 00002 $ | oocoe $ 6 va Jeyowesp o6ie) 'uopoeuUcs 100G pue wies zy| S
00°000's $ | 00°'000'4 $ | co00e $ | o000e $ | 00'05L $ | 0005 $ | 00’002 $ | 00002 $ 3 v  |Jemes sajewelp abie} ‘uogdauuoo jooq pus asod 8 Lt
00'022'e8 $ | oo'el $ | 0o'os0'sy $] 002 $ | o0'025'tS $| 008 $ | o0'09¢'ZZL $ | oo'st $ ovv'e 14NN g-d fe1eq) Jed %208 S[xel0ab yym uleipsepun 9| 9t
00°008'% $ | 0008 $ [ 00'gze'y $ | 00’62 $ | 00'0LS'e $ | ooy $ | oo'szs'y $ 1005z $ S8l 14 NN [esaie| Jomes ulals .81 GI
00°0¥Z'6 J $ | 00'088'C $ { 00V $ | 00'00%'S $ | 00'st $ | oooov's $ [ oo'0Z $ ozk T feige) James wis 9] b1
00725126 $ | 00°€S $ | oo'opr'ye $ | 00'sE $ | 00'v9Z'oh $ | oo'st $ | 00"02s'6C $ | 000t $ 86 FED Il 920 UORSaUUod uiseq ZL| €}
00°000'E4 $ | 00059 $ | 00°000°2 0005 $ | oo'cot'y $ | 0061Z s | 00°002't $ [ ooce $ [ 14 N1 €5 55e|D [ Jomes uucis 98] 2t
000268 $ | 0006 $ | 00'006'9 $ [ ooo0e $ [ co'ses'e 00551 $ [ oo'ose’s $ | 0009 $ €2 14 NN £ SSBID |0 Jowmes uuols 2] 1
00°61£'892 $ | 00616 $ | 00°51£'992 $ [ 00°GLS $ [ oo'seB’262 $ | 00's6v s | 00’65’66 $ | 00626 [ 125 14 NI 111 10 920 James wicks .96] 0L
00°862'9ZY $ | co'gee $ | 00°969'20¢ $ | 00'9¢ $ [ oo'cL'ssy $ [ oo'szy $ | 00'g29'1op $ | 00'62e $ 1207 14NN M0 920 Jemes wuls w8 6
00'¢EL'EE $ | 00291 00°ESY'SE $ | oc'slt $ | 0o'gcs’se $ [ oo's2t $ | 00°008'0E $ | o005t [ 20T 13NN 111 70 920 jomes uuoys 86| 8
00'058'88 $ | 00zoL $ | oo'sie've $ | o052y $ | oo'oot'ss $ [ co'gs $ [ 00's2€'s8 $ | o0'se § 619 13 NN MO 9L rames wigls 98] £
00°0¥2'Z} s | oo'Le $ [ oo'oov'e $ {0009 $ | 00'008'6 $ | 0002 $ | oo'oor's $ | 00'09 3 oFtL 13NN 1 10 920 Jomas uuays bZ| 9
00'¥SS'Y 0066 $ | 00°00€Z $ | 0005 $ | oover'T $ | 00'vS $ | 00008’z $ [ 0005 o EL W10 920 sames uugls 1z §
00'8€9'6 $ | 0062 $ | 00°06b'S $ | oo'sk $ | 00°00L'9 $ | 0008 s [ oo'oss'y s [ ooov [ zL 14 NI 111710 910 Jomes uucls .81 ¥
00951 ‘vb $ | 00'9L $ | oo'ovZ'ez s | oo'or s | 00'e88'22 00°8t s | oo'see'oe ¢ | oo'sE $ 185 13NN Il 3O 920 Jamas uuals .51 €
00°00F'Lb s | oo'gL $ | 00°021'22 $ [ oo'se $ | 002062 $ [ oot $ [ 00'09s'8L ¢ [ oo0e S Z€9 13NN 111 1O 91O Jomas widls ZL 3
00°000'005 ¢ | 00°000°00S _ $ | 00°000'00S $ | 00°000°005 __$ | 00°000'05% $ [ o0'oc0’'osy S | 00°000'005 $ | 00°000'005 S i 1 UONEZINGON| 1
V.01 3914d LINN IVLOL IO1¥d LINN Vi0L 3D04d LINN V101 32M¥d LINN NYND 1INN W3Ll]  ON
S130AA00 SHOLVAVIX3 NOLLONMLSNOD S1VWILST
9 YONINWYY VINIIAG 0JSY¥3AIG S.M33NION3 W31l

20W0 'sfuz A0 Je we QO/EL/9 PO SPIE

sX'D™LZ000\deL P\ L
(Jamag urnu) Areyues apis 3) aAy SQIUOW O} JOAIY PURIS 3y} Wol }S UeBIUoIN dAY S0JUON 0}
any nedwed oy J§ Head 1S aGpugmolL Jo N ,OSE 0} IS Head wol JAY SOYNOW Jo ‘ucsay




840 7 3bed

{MOLIE ‘qUOD 'MOLIE NIl 'MOLE Eﬂm

00°626'2 $ | oosL $ | 00°008' $ { 007004 $ | 00's26'T $ | o005 $ | oo'os9'y $ | 00021 s 6 va pusBey Bupuew suewered spseidousewy | P8
. . . oy . . . (=]
05°€EE'T $|sece $ | ooz8'z $| o0 $| 00°€IST $|o0sc $ | oozov's s { 006 $ [:]93 NN | eacy B " 4 aum.z| O
01'ezL'T $|set $ | 00'63¥'C $ (051 $ | 0069%'z s$|ost $ | oo'zo¥'s s${osy S ov9'L 14NN Ot ) 6L
Buppew Jjuewsaned opsejdouualy M.:; 9
oo . R . aor . et . , pHew
y9'S¥6'9 $ | o0 $ | orszz's $| 060 ¢ ooeel’s s o0 $ | oo'zib2z $ | ooe $ 6EL'6 12NN wewsned opserdounew ayym so moeA ¥ %
00080'Z $ | 009t $ | 00'699' $| 050z $ | oo'0ss't $ | 00'st $ | 00°098'L $| oozt $ ogt 14 Nit Jpeay SjaIOUcO esieAsURIL| /L
00°000'801 $|oozL $ | 00°005'224 $ | 0058 $ | 00700521 $ | 0oL $ | 00°005'0L $ | ooy s 005't QADS | giaiauc0 ¢ Bupnjou) wewsaed youq pogsnass| 94
00288'vbl $ | 0042 $ | 00°086'09L $ | 00°0E $ | ogseLeyl $ | 0o'sz $ | 00'920'6S $ |00t $ 99¢e's QA DS Jua-uou 3 d D.6] &L
00ZeY'9E $ | oo'9 $ | 00'9g6's $ | cogl $ | 00°95v'sH $ | 0082 ¢ | oovee's s | o0Ll s [45] QAND | (D) emopis snoujwniq repun eseq eeBaibBy| v
- . . . ey rantt . . (<10) uowesed
05°2H0'0%E $ | osve $ | 00'685'80} $ [ oo6L $ | oo0eL's2h s | o0z $ | oo'ssi'ze $| oozl $ SkL'S QA NO 1915UGS PUB SNOWWITYQ Jepun eseq aeBeiBby| L
00°058'261 s [ oovi $ [ 00'002'0L) $] o008 $ | 00°6L6'¢2L $ [ 006 $ | oo'00Z'oLt $ | oog $ SLL'EL QAN (dI0) eseqans pues|  Z2
rpeny . et . . . . ¥ . (§°t) paek asenbsyspunod
£5'YEL0S $ | evee $ 1 05261'98 $]o0suze $ | 00'8s8'0s $ | oove $ | o0'088'65 $ | coor S 16¥'t NOL 591 1& (esinoo doy) o - awnyqw snouumyg| M
. (.6'1) paef arenbsyspunod
8616’9y $|vee $ | 05'evL 05 $ ! osee $ | 00'v06'LY $ | ooze $ | oo'oss'ss $ | oo'or $ 169t NOL | o) 1o (ostnon Bugensy) oF - ampqu snouwryg| %
096" . byt - er - -ova" . . (,0°6) pred asenbs/spun .
¥Z'096'ZEL $ | o9z $ | oo'syL'eet $ | 0082 $ | 00°26L'vEL $ |00 $ | 00°0¥9'661 $ | ooor $ 166’7 NOL 065 12 (N0 eseq) OZ - sanpqw snourwnyg| 0
. non' B . . . ruui_
00°Z68'8Z s | 00Zs $ | oo'oc0'0E $ | 00'ss $ | oozee'sz $ | 0028 $ | oo'ove'tz $ | oo'op $ 9vs NOL asenbs/spunod gzz je el - ampw snouunyg| B2
e - st s o ! . s saduenus dures
00°000's6 $ | oo'o00'ss  $ | 00°000'sE ${00°000'¢6  $ | 00°000'G6 $ | 00000'66  $ | 0000009 $ | 0000009 S 3 s1 Bupyed 1o wasks yow mous yersu pue yswng] 49
06't+9'6 $[oey s sziv's sfsle $] 0062’9 $|00¢ $ | 06'580'6L s|ose S T 1J0S sduies pue Jjemapis 2)aouco psalojuley L8] 99
et . g . I . oyt . sdwel 10ueD
00°008'e $ | 0000t $ | 00°006'6 $ | 00°00¢ $ | ooszy's $ | oo'szz $ | 000229 s | o006t $ €€ 14 NP WOWIIEAD 18 Silem Buluos wasoues soeld| 55
gt . . . e . nra R sduwes
00°05L'9 $ | 00'GL $ | 00°005"y $ | 000 $ | 00'000's $ | o000t $ | 00°068't s | 001z $ 06 14NN OO0 WSWWRASS 12 siiem Buureas asoway| 0
00°000'cy $ | 00'000's $ | 00°009°'kS $ | 00002t $ [ 00'009'LS $ | 00°00Z'L $ | 00'008'SZ $ | 00'008 $ £ v3 ayelb 008 09,00  £9
00°000'8 $ | 00°000') $ | 00’000’ $ [ 60'000'L $ | 00'009'e $ | 00°00Z'L $ | 00008 $ | 00'008 $ 8 v3 oeif san Jyeweig 098] 29
e . ot . ' . s . odijEs
00°0sv'9e $ | oogor $ | 00'coso $ | 00'05Y $ | 00°000'9 s | co00p $ | 00°000°'s $ | 00005 $ 06 v3 £ 'upUr] oo omT, eudsuowis eepion et | 9
06'£6€'6€ $|ose $ | 00'586'05 sfooil 05'689'CE sloLs $ | oo'oge‘ay $ | co0L GES'y 1408 Yjemapis joaed youal 09
[ s |ose $ | 00°60}'6€ $ [ 00'tL 05'8L8'/2 slors $ | oo'ogs'se $ | 000l GG5'E 1488 lemapis soaed fessuod| 65
00216 $|ogy $ | 00056 $ | 00's $ | 00°699 $loge $ [ oo'gse $|osy 061 e (puejs] ueinsoped) qers peus¥aIyL OL| ~ 85
00°665'6 s | oge $ [ 00°001°01L 00y $|oszie's $|05Z $ | o0'ocz'se $ | oo'0L 3 S252 14 0s ajebeasbbe pesod: eruod IS
§1'689'e2 $[sse $ | 00'610°0Z 00 $ | sTHI0'SH s$|szz $ | Lrevo'sz s [ste €199 1408 dde pue i d Felje DLl 96
ot . erait } . aapt . uopele}sas
00'98E"'} $|oee $ | oo's28's $|sLe $ | co'ove $ 1002 $ | 00'gee'L $|sze $ ozy 1408 Bupniow ¢ dde pue kemanp 0.
0S'¥89'ZC B $ | 05296'¢2 $|sre $ | 05 22e'plL s|ezz $ | 05°296'c2 $|sLe $ 06€'8 e uopRIO}Sa) BUIPNU) IemapIS SIaIU0D L ¥S
0505y $ | oee $|osLus'y $| 05 ${ 0008L2 $4002 s | szesy'y $|gze $ g9’} 1H0s puE sdwes Bupniou; yemepis eeiouos o] &5
. o’ enent . . . uocpelcisal
09°2L5'691 $| o6z $ | 05°800°251 $|sLe $ | Ov'0SE'LS $ 1091 $ | oo'seL'zv s |05z $ $60'25 1408 pue sdwe: B saouon 4| 28
0Z'LpL'9) $ |09 $ | oovzz'el s|oss $ | oovzz'el $|ose $ | 00'9s0'se $ | oost $ zee't 12NN (ued ,g1) sen aueym JePnb pue QInd paujquod| 15
0066’68 s | o901 $ | 00'0LY'9L $| 006 $ | 00°629'e9 $|o05L $ | 00°088'L0} $ | oozt $ osv's A< NN | 3 1=98Q Jed ‘(ued 1) Jepnb pue qind pauIgwoD| 05
00'00v°S 3 | 00'cor s | 000018 s [ 000t $ | 00'006's} $ | oo'ose s | 0000.Z s | o008 s [ v3 —ojelb eon eAowey| v
00059 $ | 00059 $ | 000G $ | 00052 $ | 00°008 $ | 00009 $ | 00°009 $ | 00009 $ ] v3 you| SE-51 ‘oA enoweN| B
00'00Z'y $ | 00051 $ | o000’ $ | o0'cz $ | 00°008's $ | 00002 $ | 00'00¥'8 $ | 00°00¢ S 82 va you| g|-g ‘eag arowa)( v
00°€2Y'9L $| 0011 $ | 00'seE'ZZ s | o0'sh $ [ oo'zev'st $ | 006 $ | 00'sze'LE $ | 00°sZ $ £6v'L QA DS yidap (in) Juawianed yoyq asowad| o
00°0€8'262 $ | oo'0L $ | oo'vez'a6l ${oog $ | 00°240'€ZZ $ | 006 $ | 00°'veZ'86l $ [ o0 $ £8L'92 QA DS \pdep 10y uewsaed anowey|  Sp
00°€$Z'6 $| 006 $ | oo'022'0L $ | 0004 s | ooev2's s | 006 $ | oo'sL9'sz $ | 0062 $ 220 OADS | wdepiny Janed Y
eosdde
CO'ELY'Y $|ose $ | ov'ose's $ | 005 $| 00'899°L $ | 009 $ | oo'ves's $ | o0 $ 8LZ't QA DS pue & o énﬁ 532
IVi0L 3018d UNR WLOL 32I¥d 1INN TW.0L 321¥d LINN vioL 2D0Hd LINN NYND 1INN Wal| ON
S130AQ00Y SHOLVAVIXZ NOLLONMLSNOD 31VWILLST
2 VONINWYY YWINAG 0JS¥3ANIA SMIINIONT =1y

30O 'sBu3z AID Je we 0O/EL/3 PO SPIY

SX'0™£Z000\dBL PIEVL
(Jamag Huru) Kiegues apiS 3) AV SCILOW O} JaARY PUBID 34} WOK 1S UBBIYIA AY S0IUOH O}
aAy nedwe)d woy 1S Head 1S aBpUGMOLL JO N L0GE 0 IS Head wiay SAY JOXNON Jo ucosy




8 Jo € abed

00°005'L $ | 00°005'2 $ | o0I2v's $ [ o0'1Zp's $ | 00°005'L $ | 00°005'2 $ | 0o'00s'e $ | 00'005'8 $ b va (Auo ysiuiny) (9) ‘reubls syey) IMuawewO ‘slod| 92t
00°054's $ | 0005’8 $ | 00'b8L's ${oov8L's $ | oo'0sL'e $ | o00st's $ | 00°000'04 $ [ coooo'or $ 3 v3 (Auo ysiumy) (3) ‘reuds oygesl Iueuewso ‘olod| G2t
051'8 $ | 00°051L'8 $ | 00'v8L'6 $| 00v8L's $ | 000548 $ | o00st'e $ { 00°000°01 $ | ovoo0'cl  § 3 va (Ao ysiwny) (3) ‘eubls sel) [RUeWRWIO ‘Bjod|  ¢Z1
00°061L'8 $ | o00St'8 s | covel's $| 00'¥8L'e $ | 00'0SL'8 $ | ooost's $ | 00°000°0L $ | ooc00'0L  $ 3 v3 (Aiuo ysiwiny) () ‘reuis des) [RUIWRWO ‘olod| €21
00°00L'9 $| 0000’9 | 000SS'L s|oooss's  $| ooooL's $| 0000’8 $ (00000 $|ooco0's  § ' va [ (Ko ysiung) (0) ‘eubls owest euswewO ‘ejod) 2zt
000589 $|o00se's  $ | 00GHLL $| oo'ghL’L $ | ooog8'e $|ooose's  $|00005'L $|o000s. $ } va | (Ao ysjwuny) (g) ‘feubls owell reuswrewo 'ejod| 124
00°059'9 $)oooge's  §|00GhLL s|oogils 8| 0008’9 $|oo0s8's  $| 00005, $|o000sL  $ } v3 | (Awoysjuny) (v) ‘reubls oes) euswewio ‘ajod) 024
00°000'8 $ | 00°000'2 $ | 00'918T $ | 00°v0L $ [ oo'000's $ | 00°000'2 $ | 00008’y $ | 00°00Z°L $ [ v3 uopejieisu| doo Jojosgeq wnod|  6tl
00°000'6 $ | 00'05L $ | 00°085'Z $|006i2 $ | 00'000'6 $ | 0005 $ | oooor'vl $ | oo'00Z't [ (43 v3 (eoussald) doo'i ayjeiL| 8t}
00°082 $ [ oo'obt $ [ 00'0LL $ | 0o'sge s | oo'0s2 $ | oo'ovt $ | oo'00E $ | o005t $ 3 v3 Wiy B ageujwn saowsy| — L1t
00°0LY'E $ [ oooLe 002912 $ | 00'Z61L $ | oo'oLy'e $ | 00'0LE $ | 00°005'S $ | 00'005 $ Lt v3 QNPARS [0[U0D SYjeJl Jenpol arowdy[ g1
00°095°2 $ [ oo'ostL 00°800°t s | ooes $ | 00°095°2 $ | oo'ost $ [ oo'cor’e $ | 00’00y $ 9L v3 uojjepuncg eroway|  Gil
00°025 $ | oo'oet 00°80€"} $ [ o022 3 | 00025 $ | o0'0Et $ [ 00’002’} $ | 060°00¢ S [ v3 Sj0d joGIS aAoWRN|  pii
00002 $ 1 0005 $ | 00’88z s [ 00260 $ | 00002 s | o008 $ | 00009 - $ 00051 S v v3 ubis esep eAowey| €l
00°658 $ [ oo'sy $ | bo'eeo’oe $ | 00°250") $ [ oo'sse $ [ oot $ [ 00’528 s [ oo'szl $ 6l v3 TEUBIS SUJEIL PJUNO Al 15BN eroWod|  Zit
0005 000 $ | 00261 $ | 00261 ${ 0005 $ | 0005 $ [ o06L $ | 0062 3$ 1 va 1eubis d P ¥ 4 srow| L1t
. . _— . . ; . . leubs
00°00¥ $ | cooy $ | 00026t $| oozsh $ | oooor $ i oo'OF $ | oo'0sL $ | 005 $ oL va SjEIL UBQESPa ey Jyoiin y| O
00°0y $ [ oo'or $ | 00°250°1 $| 007250 $ | oo'ob $ [ 0oOb $ | 0062 ${006L S L va [euBiS dyjes) pajunop eIsapad sAoweN| 601
00°02) $ | 000t $ | 00°LLL'E $ | 60°250°) $ | 00°02) $ | ooy $ | 00'czz $]00sL s £ v3 1eubis SujelL PAUNoN ULy JaxoRig N 80t
00'00E $ | 00001 $ | 00'seE’L $ | 00'sSt $ | 0000 $ | 00008 $ | 00009 $ | 00002 $ € va sUlGeD B J9Nl0NUD aoweyl 101
00°000'S $ | 00'005°C 00°000'2 $ ] 00°000°} $ | o0'008'e $ | 00°006°} $ [ 00°000°5 $ [ 00005 $ [3 va ajesojal ‘ubys dures Bupyred| 901
00°005'€ 3 | 00°05L°L $ | 00°000'2 $ | 007000t $ | 00'00s'e $ | oo'0sL’L $ [ 000002 $ | 007000t $ [ va /3 1=8Q sod eseq ojod ueRs|  Sob
00°000'S2H $ | oo'000's2L  $ | 00°005'L s | 007005, $ [ 00°000°S $ | 00°000'S $ [ 00°000'0L s [ 000000l $ i 1 jonuos 1sng| 01
00°000'S} $ | 00°0St $ | 00°005'L 3 | 00°SL $ | 00°000'S $ | 0005 $ [ 00°005'9 $ [ 00'g9 $ 001 va SUISEq UNED Pad| €01
00°009'€l $ | 00002 $ | co'opL'e $ | 00'ss $ | 0o'008'9 $ | 00001 $ [ 00°002'0L $ | 00’05y 3 89 v2 stiogoedsy) siqyeiado Jajem uIRlS| 204
00'000'25 $ | 00°000°26 3 | 000052 $ | 00°005°2 $ | 00°000°SE $ | 00°000'GL __ $ | 00°000'GL $ | 00°000'sL 3 ST 10QU0D USRRUAWIPSS pue Uosua fios| Lot
00°000'5L $ | oo'cz $ | 00°000°SY 00°St $ | 0000009 $ | 000 $ | 00°000°0¢ $ | oot [ NOL juotiianed [oslB Kigioduio| 004
00'009'c6 s | oo'6E $ | 0000096 00°0F $ | 00°000'804 S | 00H $ | 00°000't¥t $ | 0o'os [k NOL yeuisaed snoujunyq Aiesoduiel| 66
00°000'0Y $ | 00'000'sy  $ | 00°000°08 $ | 00'000'08 | 00°000'6E $ | 00'000'8e _ $ | 00°000'GL $ | 00'000'sL _$ i 1 Bujufys inajeq] 86
00°000'€42 $ | 00'000'/Z _ $ | 0000008 s { 0000008 $ | 00°000'0Y $ | 60'000'0r | 00°'000°0EL $ | oo'000'0EL S 1 S1 en ueyuen| 26
00°szL'6T $ | 0oty $ | 00004 ‘92 $ | 009e $ | 00'529'2e $ | oo'st $ | oo'szL'8L $ ] oo'sT $ sz 1408 | (08+€ & OL+€ uopels) ifem Bujureras obpuq jeued| 96
00°000's6 $ | 00°000's6 _ $ | 00°000'SE $ | oo'co0'se  $ | ooooo'0t $ [ 00'000'0L __$ | 00°000'69 $ | oo'o00'ss 8 1 S1 (S2+€ 03 00+€ Uopers) abpuq feueD aaolay| — 66
00'000°22 $ | 0000022 $ | 0000002 $| 00'000'0z___ $ | 000059 $ | 00°005'9 $ [ 000052 $ | 000052 $ 1 $1 uquinid eway SO I50d[  t6
0000092 $ | 00'000’SL  $ | 060°000°65 $ | co'000'6s . $ | 00°000°GE $ ) 00°000'se | 00'000'0L $ [ ocoo0'0L L S1 | (Aemeare Bujpnixa)Buiquinid fewa J0UBK SPIO( €6
00°000'SZH $ [ 00'000'5ZL __$ | 0000000 $ | 00°000°'00L __ $ | 00°000'¢6 $ [ 00'000'c6 _$ | 00°000°00) s [oo'co0'cor ¢ 1 s JusWuopueqe Aemeale JOUBW SPIO| 26
i . g e e e ot s ezZe|d Jaued
00°000'02 $ | o0'000'0Z  $ | 00°000'0E $ | oo'co0’'oc  $ | 00°000'8Z $ | oo'000'sz  $ | 0000S'E $ | 00'005'S $ 3 $1 JuswusenoD e sieued [eimpsyyae jsevalg| 6
o e § ] oot . . . ©Zeld JAUeD
00°005'¢ $ | 00°005'¢ $ | 00002 $| 00002 $ | 00’0009 $ | 00°000's $ [ ooosLZ $ | oo'0sLT $ 3 3] WelWaAoD Je qina pue Buje szuosg x| O
00°000'2 $ | 00'000°C $ | 00°00S'L $ | 00°005'} $ | 00000 $ | 00°000'¢ $ | 000SL $ | 00°05L $ I s1 Jayusd puelo e Jes prenb sajeweid Z[ 68
00°000'b2 00°000'v2 ___ $ [ 00°000'02 $ ] 00'000'02 __ $ | 00°000'SE $ | 00'000'sE _$ | 00°000'0F $ | oo0o0'oy  $ I s ebpuq uemsapad peayl N
00°008'61 00°008 $ | 00'0s2'8 $ | 00052 $ | 00'05Z'8 $ | 00'05T $ | 00°009'9 $ | 00'00T $ 3 va opelb 03 X0g oAleAISNIPY] I8
00°000°2 $ [ 00’00z $ | 000002 $ | 00°002 $ | 00°052's $ | oo'0St $ | o0'sle'y $ | oo'szL $ 3 va xsﬁg,m_s:u_ 98
it . ey . . 8 - . apwsb o bupses
00°009'08 $ { 00’05V $ | ooo09'oe $ | oo'ost $ | oo0'00s'cz $ | 00’05 $ | 00°002'22 $ | 00°00% $ 89 va 10qUIBYS SAIRA JO UiSeq UTED ‘sjoyuew ysnpy] S8
00°05€'L $ | 00'0se $ | 00°05E'L $ | 00'05e s | oo0oc'e s | 00’008 $ | 00°00S'0L $ | 00'005 s 12 va Bupses Jequieyd aAjea Jo 9joyuBw £1-S ysSiwnd|  ¢8
00°626'81 $ | oo'ss $ | 00620721 $ | oo'se $ | 00'GZ5'SL $ [oosy $ [ 00'6LL'S s [ 0054 s Gy 14 N 1A odR) - 83epns 10 uopRIISAY] €8
. . . . . . i " *ATNO,|
00°004 s | ose s | oo'oo8 $ | 00004 $ | ooozL $ | oo'os $ | 00’096 s | oozt s 8 v3 puaBa; Bupyew suswoned spserdowsew syuny| 28
TvioL 31dd LINN I01d LINN TVLOL 3o14d LINN IWLIOL 321¥d LINN NVNO 1INN W3l ON
S130A000Y SHOLYAYIA NOLLONYLSNOD ALVNILST
B VONIWNWYY YININAG 0JSH¥3AIQ SNIINIONT wWall

390 's,Bu3 AuD je we Qo/EL/9 PR SPIg

SX'0™/2000\geL Pig\L
(1amag yuru ] Aieyues SpIS 3) 8AY SOIUOK O} JAARY PURIS U} W0y IS UBBIYOIN SAY S0IOW 0}
aAy nedure woy IS Wesd IS aBpuamosL Jo N 0GE 0} 1S Head woy SAY JOUNOW JO uosay




8 40 ¥ abed

00'8hY'LY $ 002 $ [ oL°oe6's2 $ | o6'ey $ [ oovic'oe $ | oo'9p $ | oo'svz'ee $ | oo'ss $ 689 1NN 9G 55e[0 'U[EUUEM L9 bOF
000012 $ 002 $ | 00002’ $| 00z¢ $ [ o000’y $ | 002y $ | 00°006'S $ | 00°cs $ 00l 14 NN oG 55BI0 ‘VIBUUABM | €91
SNUBAY|
00°000'5L $ | oo000's.  $ | 00°000°sZ $ [ 00000'sc  $ | 00°000'G9 $ | 00000'ss  $ | 00°000'05 $ 10000005 $ 3 ] S0IUOW NSRS URBIYA Je sarmonas/synes| 2ol
10 uopdejoud Joj wasAS uoguaey yes
ONUBAY SOsLK
00°000°5L s | co000'sz ¢ | oooooze s o0o00'ze ¢ | 0oooo'se s [ ooo00'ss s | 0000005 s {oooo0'os s b s <s oNpeeRS henguwﬂas_gésn_m 19
. e s e et ey At . @duRAUT ¥200 DUipeo 83O
00°000'22 $ | 00’00’22 $ | 00'000‘CE $ 1 000000 $ | 00'000'sZ $ | 00000'c2  $ | 00°000'05 $ | o0'000'05  $ 3 s1 1500 SN 40 uomaaRoid o As uop .%«m 09
. o et i it i ot . ssedlano abplq
00°000'2L $ | 000002, $ | 00000 $ [ 00000°vY  $ | 00'000'SY $ | 00000'sy  $ | 00°000°05 $ | 0000008 $ 3 5] 961 1o uopsaosd o) fs uop wiea| 6
00°000'82 s | ooooo'sz ¢ | ooooo'es s | oooo0ec | oovcoo'or ¢ | oooo0'or s | ooooo'os s | ooo00'cs s } 1 ABMERIY JOUER o
SPIO Jo uopooid 10} wWaysAS uoguaey yuel
90JUOH 002 38
00°000'9Z $ [ oo'000'8Z  $ | 00°000°9E $ | oogoo'se | 0000D'0E $ | oo'c00'0e  $ | 00°000'05 $ | 0000005 8 3 1] duwes Bupued pue ‘Ynea weals Ynea Joungjsueny ISt
! Jo uopoxeid 10} A ye3
ot . . . . I ot . ¥5anS Pesd Guofe femease
00°000'GE $ [ 00000'GE  $ | 00000'YY $ | 00000'v¢  $ | 00°000'G9 $ | 00'000'¢8  $ | 00°000'0¢ $ | 0000005 $ 3 $1 Kemuty 30 d Jo3 weashs uopuaey yuez| 5t
. i e e o ' .. i 18345 |iead/enuaay nedwed
00°000°65Z $ | 00'000'€SZ  § | 00°000'LG $ 100000 $ | 00°000'SS $ | o0'000'sS  $ | 00°000°0S $ 0000005 $ 3 $1 12 wesks uopusiey Ywes pecerg Arewsqu| S5
- $| - $ | 00°'€08'L98°C $ | co'ess $ | 00's25'e98"t $ | 0065 $ [ 00°009'vt6'L $ | 00'009 s 1Z'e 14 N1 (111 "920) Jomas Kieqjues .60L|  vS1
00°09€'881 $ | ooove $ | so'esy'ss 1L'E0L $ [ ooorz’es s | 00GHE $ [ 00055k $ [ o005 s $S5 14NN 6294 1lBM PIIoS DA ‘Arejlues 81| €St
00'8L8'YS $ | 00'8LE s | orzov'st 01°06 $ | 00'gss’ll $ [ oo'sol $ | 00°GES'YE $ | oo'se $ [} 1NN 0892Q ‘Aeyues 51| z6t
00°050°05 $ | 00'sLL s | 00'8/8'02 00'EL IV $ | 0056 $ | oo'osv'iz $ | oosL $ 982 1INC osgca ‘Aeues 2t 161
00'¥91'85 s [ co'sri $ [ ocezz'ee s | ot’es 00°0ZL'GL s [ ooov $ | 00'svs'se $ [00'gs $ £6¢ 13NN 08920 ‘Amjves 8] 05h
00'8L1'2L s [ oo'avL s [ oo'oze’s $ [ ooov 00'506'2 ¢ | oo'se $ | oo'os6’y $ | 00'08 $ €8 14 NI 0892Q "Areyues 9] 6vl
00°005 SV $ [ 000062 $ | 00'000'vZ $ [ 00'009°t $ | 00'000'cE $ [ 00’0022 $ [ 00005’ $ ] 00005t S St va Jaewelq b “1L-S eeq Jod sjoyue Amues| svl
00°00€'22 $ | 00008’ $ | 00°005'8E $ | 00'00s's $ | 00°000'+2 $ | 00'000'¢ $ | 00'00t's $ | 00°00€'} $ L va ejoyueiy Aejues |-S Uym 89 sjoyuel jsedald| Lyl
(aav]
00°000'85 $ | 00°000'95  $ | 00°000°29 $ [ 0000079  $ | 00'000's5 $ | 00'000'ss  $ | 00"000'2e $ | 00000'ze  $ 1 3 N S0+Z) UOREIS) ULy Ay d ovi
1sixe Jo Butssasd Jomes Aseyues 801
00'000'68€ $ | 00°000°68  $ | 00°005°2E1 $ | 00'005°2€L  $ | 00°000'96 $ | 00°000'96  $ | 00°000'L¥ $ | 00000’z 3 $1 SbpugmaiL svi
10 YLON ,05E ‘0Ilo - sequieyd uogounf Lues
00°000'881 $ | o0'000'ssL S [ 00°00¢'26 $ [ 0000826 $ | 00°000'S8 $ | o0000's8 | 00°000'42 $ 0000022 § 3 s UOAT pue aoiuol - Jequieys uogounf Areyues|  vhi
00°000'8LE $ | 0o'000'slE _ $ | 00°255'zeL $ | 00'zes'zzl  $ | 00'000'0L $ | 00°000'c0L  $ | 00°000'¥E $ | 00000'vE _ $ 1 1 Head pue acsuop - Jaquieyd uopouni eyues|  evi
00°000'86€ $ | 00°000'86  $ | 00°000'022 $ | 00000022 $ | 00'000'0L} $ { 00000041 S | 00°000'VY $ | 00000y S 3 5l nedwe) pue pead - Jequieyd uopounf Aiejues| 2zl
00°000'961 $ | oo'000’9st  $ [ co'000°28 $ [ 0000028 $ | 00'000'56 ¢ [ oo000'sé ¢ [ 00°000°0E $ | co'000'0E _ $ 1 S 9511 PUE QQUUOR -ainonas uopsuell] vl
00°000°202 $ [ 00'000'202 __$ | 00°000'29 $ 0000029  $| 0000068 $ [ 00'000'c8 S [ 00°000°22 $ [ 00000%Z _ $ 1 1 UEBIUSIIN PUE G0JUOW ‘eJMoNAS uopsuesl]  ovh
00°000°LSL $ [ 00'000'tSt  $ | 00'000°0L $ | oco'000'0L _ $ | 00°000'S8 $ [ 00'000'c8  $ | 00°'000'ZZ $ | 0000022 § 1 1 uoA pue S0JUON BIMSNAS UoHSURIL]  6EL
00°00b'S $ | o0'0se’L $ | 00'088°2 $ | oo'0zL $ | oo'oov's $ | oooge’L $ | 00'000'9 $ | 00°005"s $ [ v3 uoREpUNO 810d U[RAS [0S eseg Joysuy|  gEL
00°000'Z} $ | 00°000'c $ | 00°080'c9 $ 1 000LL'Sk  $ | 00°000CH $ | 00°000'c $ | 00°000'0¢ $ | 000052 $ [4 v3 (Aluo ysiwing) g¢ ‘ejod urens eels eseq Joyduy|  LE4
. . - . . . ¥ . (Aluo ysiusnyg) (exoesg Jepid
00°066 $ | 0059} $ | 00°092't $ | 000k $ [ oooee $ | 0059k $ | 060006 $ | 000t $ 9 v3 fssqr ‘M sueudojo) uuy Jeyorrg jmuewewo| 26
I Aiuo ysitu u R
00°085's s|ooses  s|ooemL $|ootelt | o0oss's sfooses s |oooos $|oooce s 9 v3 oort) SR e el gg)
00°008't $ [ oo'osy s [ 00°020'y $ | 00'500°L s | 00008’} s [ oo'osy ¢ [ 00’000z $ | 00005 S v va (Q) oseg uopepunod] ¢l
00'GLE $ | 00'gLE $ | 00¥SL $ | oovsL $ | 00'GLE $ | 00'sLe $ | 00’052 3 | 0oosL $ i va (D) oseg uopepunod| €€t
000002 $ | 00'000' $ | 00'500°L $ | 00's00'L $ [ 00°000T $ [ 00'000'C $ [ 00000t s { 00'000°t S 3 va () eseg uopepunocd|  zel
00°00L°8 s | 00’006 $ | 00'S¥0's $ [ 00'500'L s [ oo00L's $ [ 00’008 $ | 00005l $ | 00°005't $ 3 va (v} eseg uopepunod[ L€t
00°004'S $ | 00'00L'e $ | oozsv'e s | cozev's $ | 00°00b'E $ | oo'00L'E $ | 00'000's $ | 00°000'S $ 3 va (Auo yswiny) () ‘eubts ayeiy JeuswRWO ‘sjod|  Oct
00°085'S $ | 0o0ss's $ | ooozz’s $ | 000zZ'9 $ | 000s5's $ | oo'0ss’s $ | 00°000'¢ $ | 00000'y $ 3 va {Auo yspuny) (r) ‘leubys ayes) jeuswewo 'slod| 621
00°002'L $ | o000L'L $ | cozes'e $ | 00265'e $ | 00002'L $ | 00'002'2 $ | 000056 $ | 00°005'6 $ 3 va (Auo ysiwimy) (1) ‘feubis oyjesl RUBWeRWO ‘Blod| 821
00°054'8 $ | coost's $ | covsl's $| covBl's $ | oo'ost's $ | 00'0SL'8 $ | co"000'0L $ | oo'000'0t  $ 3 v3 (Auo ysiwing) (H) ‘teudts oyjel) |UGWBWO ‘olod]  LZL
TvioL 3o18d LINN TWLOL 3O1d LINN IVIOL I51Hd LINN V101 30 LINN NVAD 1INN wal| oN
S130AA00Y SHOLVAYIXA NOLLONYLSNOD 3LYWILST
7 VONINAYI YIWENAG 0JS¥3AIQ S HIANIONS WALl

SX'O”£Z000\deL PigvL
30O 's,6u3 IO Je we OO/EL/S PI3) SPIF (Jameg yunu 1 Areyues apIS 3) @AY S0IUOIN O} JBA PUBID BU) WOy IS UBBIUSIN SAY S04UOW 0}
aAy nedwed woy IS Head 1S 80puUgmall Jo N 0SE O} IS HEad woy IAY JONNOW JO U0y




8o g abed

30O 's,6u3 A0 e we QO/EL/9 PR3N SPI

0086 $ oozt $ [ ooo00e S[o000z s [ooosen S]oo0i s o00008 $[ooor s 5 =W Tomas KIEyues 2 BUmsna i PUE UopUedy] 222
oo0ozt s [ oo'ss $ [ ooo00% $| o000, s 000002 s [ovo0s $ [ 00068 $ [oooe s oz 5NN 1emas Kieyues .of BURsic i PUE UopUEQY| 122
oo g - oot . o o o Tmeweq
00000z s [ooo00's | cooooes s|oooos's s | 00000z s |ooo00's & | 00000 $ | 00000y s z VE | o gz 1meq sod Bunsocs sano siouuen oepung| 0%
00000t $ [ 00000, 6| 000000 $ | 0000001 § | 0000021 $ | 000002 § | 00000 $|ovoo0e _§ 1 V3 %O Ul ONEA 5Z] 61T
00005 $ (o005t s o00510% s o0sios___$ | 00000t $ [ 00000 8| 0005z $|ovoset ¢ : va TonpeN 91 X 42] 812
000082 s [ 00’005 § | 00000%8 $[00000% s | 00000% s [00'000t s | 0oosLE $ [ o005z € va nools 2| 212
000052 $ 000057 8005205 00520 §[ 00000 s [00000 s 00000 $ [ 00000 i va BLeX.bz] oK
0000LE s[oo0set s [ ooost’s $| 00520 5[ 00000% $ [00000% __§ | 00000% $ [ 00000 z va SsL.o%.bz| oie
000522 s [ o005z 000522 s[ooosz 8| ooooos s [o0000' s |oooorz sloooo, s £ v Pusq eaiBop 06 91| _ ¥12
00058 00058 00008’ s | o000z s (000018 $| 00006 s |000069 s[ovoor s s va Pueq saiBop ov 91| €2
0000E"t 00059 0000y} 0000Z____$ | 00°008s $ 00006 s |o000vt sloooo s z va PUSa 9aB9p 22 91| _ Z4Z
00°00E™) 00059 00008 00053 §| 0000t $[00006 s | oooor’t s[ovoor s z va PUed oalBep 5211 Ot 1T
0000’51 $ | 000057 $| 00005 0000ZT _§ | 000096 0000zt | 000089 ooose s 0 va oIS .91] oIz
00000, s[o0o0s s oooos $|o00ss s o0005t 0005, ___$] 00005t 00052 3 z va JeonpeY B X 01| 602
00009 s [ 000087 8| 00005 s 00005 s | oooos't 00'008'h | 00005 000057 ¢ ; va 5010 .91 X.91] 802
000sT': s o005z $ | 000002 $] 000007 $| 00008’ § [ 00008t S | 00000 s [ 00000 ¢ v v YT T
00°00KEL s [oooses s | ooovear s [oo0izy ¢ coo00z $ [ 00005 S [ 00000 s [ 000007 ¢ v va X% G ONEA 91| 902
000002 s 000007 S | 00080 $| 0000 § | 000062 s [ o00sy’t _$ [ 0000zt s [oo0s8 s z V3 9L .91 X.9, X.01| 602
00055 s | 00055 s [ooves O I I $ [o00oct s [ ooose s [ooose & L v3 %L.0L X.9LX.91] 02
00055% 00088 §| 00652 $|oosss s |ooosse $ [ 0005z | 000552 s[ovose ¢ 3 va L8 XL X1 €0z
000008 $[o0008 s oo0ss’s s|ooess s o00000es $ {00002t | 000058 s (o008 8 o va SLOX91 X901 202
00008 s[ovooy s [ooooe s o000y s|oooozt $ 00009 S| o000zt s (00009 € z V3 Piioq easbop v 21| 102
0005z s [oo0set s ooosens ${o005eT s | 00009t $ [ 00009 $ | 00001} s [ooo0LT s P va %00 I SNEA 21| 002
o0'0se $ [ o005t s [co'ses s|oosze 8| ooooy s[ooosy s o000 s[ovo0s s : V3 Jeonpey 0k X 21| 66
00051 % $[ooostt s oooss s|ooos. s |oooozt s [00002T s [oooss s {oo0ss ¢ : v Xog Ui GNEA 01| o6
00007 $ [ o000z s | o000z s|oo00z _s|ooooe $ [ 0000z 8] 00052t $ | o005zt s } v Brid 01| _z6
00001 Z $ | 0000z s[ o001z $[ o000, ] ooooee $ [00004 S | 00086 0058 ¢ £ v %O G ONEA 5] 861
00006 s [ ooooe s | oosz0'e $|oosz S| ooosew s [ovosy s |ooostL o00ss g m v 9L 9X.8X.8] G6t
000527 $[ooose __s|ooossz s[o00sz ___$| cooovy s [ovoov s {o000s6y ooy s ) va PUSq 6159D Gv 8] V6
0005z $|ovosc____s|ooon s [ooorz s oooor $[ooooy s | ooosr sfooosy s L V3 Pisq saibep 522 6| €6t
oo'ose $[ooosz s |ooore s[ooovz s | oooor s {0000y s | ooosy s[ooosy s : V3 PuSq 0a1Bop 5211 .8 26t
000009 $[ovo0st s | ooooee o005 s|oo00sz s [ 0000, §| 00008 s [ooosy 8 v V3 o
00°006 $[oo0oe s |ooos s [oo0sz s | 00050 0005t § | 00005t s [o000s s € V3 %L.9%.9%,9] 06t
00052 $ | ovosz s | o000z s [ooo0c s ooose o005t s [ o0ose s | ooose 3 L v3 PUaq oaiBop 06 .9] 681
00'009 00062 s [ oosso s[ooszz s | 00009 00007 s | 000507 s [ o005t 3 £ V3 JeonpoN ¥ X,9] 86l
00005t $] 00009 s |o000s0r ${oo00s s oooo'ss $[ovo0s s |oo0ssti 00056 3 53 v X0 B SAEA 5| L0
00000 § | 00005 § | 00°000F $ 00005 s 0000z $|oo009 _ s|ooooz $[ovose 8 z v3 wwais o ssl
00002 s o000z ] ooost s [ooosi $ | o000z s [ 0000z S| o008 slooss 8 ; va “Bnid 9] et
0000zE} $ 0000t S| 0000KZI s [ o005yt s | oooozer $ 00009 $| 000095t s[oo00eT s ) va ek G| 8l
00000 $|00005T __§ | 00006 s[ovosy s ooo0zt $|o0o0s s |oooo: s[ooose s z V3 aeaIs | __eet
00001 % $ [ oooss $ | 001006 s [o0osy s 00000 s [00005 S| 00001 s[oooss 8 z va X0 G oNEA b 28
00002 s [ 0000z s [ oooc s [ovooz s |ooo0e s ovoos s|ooose s[ooose s : va pusq sei5ep 06 o] st
00009 s | o000 s | o000z s|ovosz  s|ooose s{ooose s |ooose s|ovosz s ' va wopetodson Bupniou ‘sswes sem 2.0 duy] 0%
00069 $ [ 00009 $ [ooooe $[ooooe & oooey $[ooosy s |ooos s|ooose s ; v3 SINI9S 1M, 2 U0 Xog % dois Gino| 6L
00091y s[o0zs $ | 000002 s|oose $ | 00008z s [ooe $ [ 00008z s [oose s o =N SaIieS JaVep 199900 2| 8Ll
00005 $ [ 00008 $ [ o000e $ [o0o0f ¢ o000 $| 00009 s ovosct $[o00:2T s : va 8B R0 12
00°000°% $[ 00005 s o00009 s [o00oc s o000zt s [o000s s o000sT $[ovoset s z V3 UeWIsEM BURSP .8 060 30| 9Lt
00'G5Y'5E9 s [o0'se $ | 00529705 s ooz s [ooosrvee s [ o005 $ [ 00006899 $ [ 0000 $| ee9s GAnS UoReAEaxa Yoou| oLt
00'000'00} $ | ooooo'sor  $ | cooco'st $|ovoo0'st ¢ | oo000'se s |ooooo'sz | 00000's $|oooo0s  $ ' =) pue yous ‘aresbony Busomuon| "2
000005 $ [000006E___§ | 00005% § 00005y § | 00005E $ [o0o0st 8| ooooee $ [ooooce ¢ ! & Roning UoPnGeuooaid|  E41
000003} $ [ 0000031 $ | 0000062 s [ 00000z $ | 00'000°SH s [ 00'000'8r __§ | 000009 s [ 000009 : va OLM 116150 199 16RO UIEWIREM b2 2L
0005551 s [ oosrl s | ooosz'el s | o0'sLt s | oo005'sl s [ o005t § [ o0 00z'et $ ooz s ou e, 95 S5eI0 WEWIREM 52| 121
00'¥6TZEL s [ 00zos s [ oz'gsi’sor s|orts s[oosizee s [ 0056 $ [o0szls s [oosL s| 1t PR 55 SSEI0 WeUWEM L0L] 021
o0'08L'E s oot $ | 00059 $ [ o0'se s oooss sloose s [o00se s | oose s o =Nn 96 5ei0 WEWIRIoM 21| 68t
005209 s [oots s[osz80% s[os¥g s [ oo5e9s s [o0s2 s [o0'526'9 s [ oocs s 5L =NA 99 S5EI0 UISUIEM 04| 891
0006202 s [oou s [ ooseer s oi’sy s [ 00005°Et $ [ 0005 $ [ 0000681 s [ oooL s oz L 9 SveI0 WeuLEM 8] L}
00'628'5ZL s o005z s ovttias QI s [ ooevzeL s [ 008y $ [ 0005528 $ | 0005 s vest =NA £ SeeI0 "WEWIRIEM L8| 991
0000891 s [oo0z s [ 00vegs AE $ [ oo0ss0L S [o0vr $ [ 00069 s [ oooy s|__o FET £ Ssery WeuwsiEM 9] GOl
TWIOL 35iud 1INN Wiol Soiud 1NN WioL Sorud LINR Wiol Tolud NN NVD NN WSL]_ON
S150A000N SHOLVAVOXE NOLLONNISNOD Stvwisa
% VONIWY> VIEIA GoSWENI STINIONT Wl

SKX'O”/Z000\qEL Pig\:L
(1amag sjun1) Alejiues apiS 3) AV S0JUOI O} JSARY PURIS L} Way IS UeBIyoi SAY S0IUOW 0}
aay nedwed woy IS Head IS abpuamai) Jo N LOSE O} IS Head wou AV JOUNOW Jo ‘uodsy




ret . - . et . gt . & SN
00'5L5't s | oot s | 00068t s| oot s | o0'szs't s | co'st s | ooszs'y s | ooy s 501 LN | o o ompotos Ynpuon paung wara| 65
e ) — - . } e ; v o1oN 7Tt
00°552'58 s | oocer s | oo'lo8'ic s} oo s | 00'ssL'ss s | oo'set s | ooeesvs s | oo'ier s £t LN | o o onpoios ‘Sinpuco pesos semuey| 5
00°05Y s | ooe s | 00'005's s | ooot s | ooosy s | oo s | o00szz $ | oos s ost L4NM | Zb@oN Jp/k-k (1) Sonpreuu) pepng peug eoeid| 262
00°090°¢ s | oot $ | 00'sZe’S $| 005 $ | 00°090°s $ ooy $ | oo'sse's $|o00L $ [ A 14NN |1y BON YOHT Jied 00v teddod euoydejel siqen|  8sz
e . o _ e . . ! O S1ON_aurpa; uBii
00008} s | o0ose s | ooves'rs $|ooerr's 8| ooooses s | ooose s | o000s'sz s | o000z s 88 V3 | pusrd weuitiose pu sl iy Soucona| %
0059812 s|osz s | ooseo'sz s | o0 s| o0esetiz |05z s | oo'soc'es s | oos s| oree 14NN |6E @ioN s10jnpuos Aepucses seddes 3SN o8 Y| bz
00°006't s | o005 s | oo'see’t s | ooee $ | 00006’ s | ooos s | soovo'e s | 0ooe s g8 L4NM SN SO oo
‘OAd OF SINPAYDS ‘YNPUOD Payng 1aig sdeid
ALt § hi p1 . oLt . rcoa! : . e aON p-(p)
00BIY'EZ s | oost s | oo'sie've s | oot s | oosivez s | ooer s | o0'ses'se s | oo'ss s 108"t LINT | gy o0 anpouos Wnpuco peung mend wews| 25
oyt . o . . . b . . ZE@oN 2{2)
000vz'zZe s | 00g s | coosr've s | ooot s | coovzze s | oo's s | ooovv'est s | oo0e s| sb9 LINM | o ampowss mpuod pouns mena aeewt| V%
- j o — ; — } ; T
00°09'ZC} s | 000zt $ | ooosz'er s | ooz s | ooeezet s| ooz s | oo'sco'sp s | ooy s|  eon 13N1 .uiS».:Eﬁwe:E..oEBl%ﬂaﬁE 052
— - ) — — - - - - 72 SN GIVO0S/) AOZH SaH
00000t s | 00005 s | oosurz s|ooesor s | 00000t s | oooos s | oooez $ | oooes s z va MOD» ‘U T o3 1en tae e 21| %
50000 LY S| 00000ty § | 0082695 s | 009z695 S | 00000LY S | 00000ty S | 000000y $ [ooocooy S 0 va CZ @ON_ 6 UoRedon Juewdinba [eonoeE] 82
0005.'52 S | 00052528 | 0092699 $] 0052695 | 0005452 5] 0005.92___$ | 00000°0E s [ 0000008 0 va SZ 10NV UoRES0 Jusnidinba [emse@|  Zie
00°005'24 s | oooosz s | coooez s|oooesz | oooosz s | 00005z s 00000z s|oooovz s s va 22 ON O3 lm1eq “4aA0D puB SloupuBH olged| 9tz
000008 s | 00008 s [ooooriz $[oooviz | 00000 s | oooos ${ 000059 $ [ 0009 3 o va OZ 91oN -3 390 70A00 P GloUPUSH 9IGE0|  GVZ
000008 s [ 000008 S| 0028L s| 00czaL 000008 $ ] 000008 §] 00009 s [ 000099 ¢ I va H6% GION_B-G2 190 ‘SI0UUEH [m33E] W2
00100062 s [ 00000'a ___$ | 00'890°tF s [ oozsz0r 0000052 s | 00000 ___§ | 0000828 s [ 0000zEr 8 v va V6L SN OGZ 190 "OIoWusH [EEPeIa] 65T
00°009'86 s | 00'008's 8 | 00vES'ES § 002056 S| 0000996 $ [00008°G __$ | 0000ZZHE s | 000099 ¢ m va 61 919N -5 190 "OI0UUEW [EomoE]  2vT
00°00V'5E $ | 00'00v'sE S | 009622 s [oooezz | oooorse | oocov'st __$ | 0000001 s | 000000f S 1 va BF GION_ Ve~ 15180 "WNeA JoUojsUell] vz
) ) } - - - ) 21 SN Usa19
00°002 s | 000z $ | 00'0zs s | oozs $1{ o000z s | 000z s | ooost s ooss s o 14N1 350 N0 28~ 1 + MoiGk noze-Krema oeg| O
. ) — ) e ) — } . 91 SN UsaiD
00°896'€4 s | ooet s | 00'gs0'cot s | oost s | 00'see'cs s | ooas s | oosee'iiz s | ooz s| s LINT | s+ AiSh N0 02 o6 Aoetma omgea| 5%
0075598 $|os6 s [ 000z9'ss s [ 069 $| oozeess s [09s s [oooig ot s Looer A T V1 910N .+ 1190 £ (2) Sphpieuul| 62
0002569 s o008 $1 0008515 s [009 $ | 0002569 s [o0's $ | 00'069'98 $ [ooor s e =N 1 SN b/t 1180 ¢ () sphpieun|  ZeZ
00°058'E s | oo'ss $ | 00°096's s | 00wz s | oooss's s | 0o'ss s | 000zt $ | oo'tor $ o LN O ] 962
— ) . - — - o ) T+ SION W
00°509'2 s | co'se $ | oo'aLe'e s | oove s | oo'so9'z s | o0ce s | oorzoet s | ooear s i LN | op s o ainpotos ‘sinpuos poseous | ez
— ) — ) — ) - - OF G0N b
005268 s | oo'ss s | oosese s| ooze s | oosze's s | oo'se s | ooszens s | co'sst s sot LN | oo o ampotos ‘Sinpuco poseous aamuos] 752
— i — - - j : - G0N b
oo'0zv'se s | oogit s | oo'sor 'yl s | ooy s | oo'ozy'se s | oosee s | cozso'zs s | 009t s 80¢ LNT | on s oz empouds ‘Synpuon poseous | ez
. ) — - . ) — - BOIN b
00°05L'E1 s | ooset s | co009's s | 000 ] ooose'es s | oo'sz 3 | 0o'0sZ's1 s | o5zt s ot CHENT | anpouss ‘mpuco paseouz e O
00°058'64¥ s | ooost $ | oovoz'saz s | oo'ss s | ooose'sLy $ | ooost s | oo'rro'szs s | oot s| ez BN | e 5 s | V2
! - . ) o } .y } GawN
00ver'e s| ooy s | oozvey s | o0z s | ooverz s | oow s | o002z s | 000z s 129 1481 211 “Od O oINPOUSS “HnpuoD peting ar] O
. i . - . o - . } G0N 'V2Z-3 % £2-3 79 ‘eseq DU ‘aeujwn)
0000022} s |oooos's 8| ooozsies $|ooszez s | o000z s |oooot'a s | cooootost ¢ |oooose s oz VB o s eratis orenb o ‘apog Bn 18| 6%
00 0SL68 s [oost $ [ o000z s [ ooov S [ 00065t s |06z AR § 005l 3 055 '] B 1eiaie fowes Kiejues| 82
O0'LISSE s [ 0020t s | 000269 s [ ooor s [oovves s | oosz s | 009svzt s [ o02L s €21 ENR 51 1eiaye Jewes Kimyues| 42z
0006924 s [o0ve s [ 00oor's s | 000y s [ 0059 s o0iz $ [ 0008’6 $ [ 0089 s SEl YETY] 2t (1)) Jomes Kimyues| 92z
00°0b'Ct $ | oo'eg $ | oo's2s'e $| oo'sy 00°0LL'E $ | 009z $ | oo'o8Z's $ [ oov9 3 Shl J NIT 8 [ee] Jomes Aijues|  6Z2
000068 $ [ 00cL s [ o009t s | ooor 00°00E s [ovez s | 00voL'S s [ o0zs s z =N 9 Imaye jomes Kieyues|  vzz
00°00E'DT $ [ ooErt $ [ 000052 s|o0sz 000005} s [ oo'ost $] 000009 s | 0009 oot SN Towas Kiejues L09 BURsIE 11 PUE Uopuedy] €22
VioL Totud LiNA V1oL Soiad LINn VioL Sottia LiNn VIOL 35194 LiNn NVND Thn Wal| oN
S150AQ00H SHOLVAVOXS NOILONELENGD SIVAILES
% VONINWY VADIAQ GOBHAID SAIINIONT WSLI

30WO 's,6u3 AXD Je we 00/EL/9 P3) Spig

SX'D™LZ000\dR) PIEVL
(1amag Huru L Areyues 2piS 3) BAY SQIUOJ 0} J3AIY PURIS) SY) WoY IS UEBIYJIN aAY S0IUO| 0}
sAY nedwed wol I$ Pead IS sbpugmol Jo N 0SE 0} IS Head wol IAY SOHNON JO 'uoday




8 Jo L afied

000022 00’002 00'005' s | oo00s s | 00002z 00°002 00°005' $ | oooog $ n va | Aeuunyo ejoyvew onosuog ABious sieunsuod! 682
00°000'0 00°000's 00°000'24 $ | 00'00s's $ | 00’0000t 00°000°S 00°000'¥L $ | co'o00'L $ z va ‘sjoquEw %001q 3O o :ABrous g b‘p. 882
00°05%'9 00051’ 00°005'" $|oooost | ooosy's 000542 00°000'1Z s |ooo00z s £ va SO 20 WA AB e.w“umh.ww 192
00'006°} 00081'2 00°000' s|ovoost s | ooo0sz 0003 00'000'2% s|ooo00s s 9 V3 | ooyuen seoond 30 imeul Asous ounsiey| 95
0002 o000zt 00005t $| 000z s | ooovz 0002 00009 $ | o000e s z V3 | buuedo ubnos .o x 54 Areum sewnsueg] 5%
oo'ogy o005t 00052 $| 000z s | oo'osy 00051 00002 $ | oooov $ £ V3 |y Buuedo yBnot .0z x oz ABieus wewnsueg] "%
o0'0se 00052 00082 $|ooos ¢ o0ose 00052 00005 s|oooos s ' Y3 |y Buedo uBnos 08 X .o ABiuz wownsuey|  E%
00'sz oo'szL 00'052 s | o0osz s | oosut 00's2t oa'coy s | oooov $ L V3 | 4 Buuedo yBna .0z x w0z seug seunaieg| %
o0'0sE 0054 000054 s| ooosz s | ooose 0052t 00'008 s | oo'coy s z va u Buedo yBnos 92 X .02 ABieus weamsusg| V%
00009z o000z 000s2's s{ovesz s oo00eT 0000z 00°002's s|ocor s € V3 | Buusdo yBnel 2 X .0z ABieus wewnsing| 0%
00'0% 0002z 00°00g"t s | coosz s | ooovs 00022 00'000°t $ | ovoos $ z V3 | uedo uBnas .oc X op Afieus eeumsiey| 62
00’02z’ 00°0£Z 00'005'0 s | ooosz s | ooozze 00062 00°000'2 $ | oooos s v Y3 |\ Buoedo ubnas .05 x 0 Afseus sewnsues B2
00°095 ov'se 00008 s{ooooe  §|oo0ss ov'se 00008 s | ooos s o V2 | qoyuew wm pue omﬂ.«mmohw.naﬂmsunhu”wm”:w uz
00's1't 0o'ge 00066 s | o0oe s | ooss1t o0'e 00°066 s | oooe s ge 14NN S moﬂﬁnﬂ%wwwmcw oounsuon| 92
00008 005z 00°0r s | ooz s | oooos 00'se 00'0rs s | ooz s| = 14N U2 1P i Ao manon| S
00'069' oo-oe 00°09b'Z s| 000z s | coose's 000t 00'90L' s | ooz $ ez 14NA e 191D 30 e mﬁwﬁwco wnsuog| Y2
00'050'Y 000e 00'sLE's $| ooz s | oo0s0 0008 00's0L'E $ | 00z $ gel 19NR N %@%ﬁmﬂ%ﬂhﬂ»ﬂwﬂ“ ez
o0'sva't oo'se 00°s2t' s| ooz s | ooove o0'Ge 00'sLL't s | ooz $ w 14NN e u%“w:%rﬁv%%ﬂﬁoﬂwﬂﬁ wuz
2 WewIyoEgY 995 - fpuun L punciBiopun
00°000'a1 00'000°} 0000081 $|ooooo's | 00'0o0st 00'000'9} 00°000' s|o0o00's 8 L 1 6unsPQ Ul BUIA (EUBIS IS JojeIoUes pue| 122
$9pas Jamod AoueBiseury JIOA 05y MON (TEISU)
00'000'1 00°000'1 00'808'52 ${00808%C  $ | 00000'SL 00°000's! 00°000'st s | oooo0'st s 1 =y Py %Mwhohhhu%_mu_ou:wﬂuﬁm oz
0005LSt 0005251 5000062 | co0000z__§ | coosLst 000515t 5000005 $ | 0600005 _s C S ks BuiiBr 10a55 Buitspa anolen] 692
000868 00iz 00°092'5 s | oosz $ | oo'oev'es 001z 00°001'98 s | oo's0z $ ozy LINT | ampeuss ‘sunpuon poscavs arme]  #%
o008y 0oy 00°0se s | ooe s | ooosy ooy 00'0zL s 009 $ 0zt 14N | on womemsul noos 35 nose-e ‘sionpuey| L%
00'ses o5t 000"t s| oot s | ooazs 052 00'005' s | oooe s oet LANT [ o o on o0 ompouss ‘sinpuos sone o] 9%
00°059 00'et 00052 s | oost $ | 00’059 oo'st 0010002 s | ooy s 0s LNT | o oo o0 ampots snpuoo soma oae| 5%
oo'0LL o 00'0¥S't $| oz s | ooou 00'tt 00°002" 1t s | oonol s o FETY, I R, npuco peseoun mamuey] "%
00'60L'S 059 00098'2 $ | coo} $ | oo'e0L's 059 00'8YL'YL $ | oot $ 98L LN | e uonemsul AQoS 3SN NoZE- .m.au%:ww £92
o0'9Lz oot co'8ze oot s| ooz oo'v 00'0L8 s | oog $ vs 1481 L “OAd 0 eInpeySS YmpUoD peun wang| 2%
00'p90° o'y 00vve'y s| oos s | oove0z oov 00'094's s | oot $ alg LN | o uopemsu Aoos 380 nozet ‘wesnpusy| %
00°509 o0t ooose $ | 009 s | oo'coe 00t 00002 s | ooor s s LINT | o ampeios minpuos peung pard| %%
V1oL 3o1ud 1NN VioL S5itd LINA Viol Soitd LNn V1oL So1ud LN NVio 1INn WL oN
S130Ad00Y SHOLVAVOXE NOLLONYLSNGD 3LVWLST —
B VONIWWYY VAIIAD 00SHIAI SAEINIONG [ET]

80O 's,6uz A0 je we pO/EL/9 PRI SPIg

S0 LZ000\GR ) PIavL
(1amas HuruL Arejues apis 3) @AY SOJUOW O} JBARY PURIS SU} woy IS ueBiyoly 2AY saiuop o}
aAy nedwe) woy I Head I aBpugmol] Jo N OGE 0} 1S Head woly IAY SOXUNOW J0 'uodsy




8Jo g afed

GELS3NOTY UIAIVM
9%0'L - ofieny
%0°L - 36M
%8°E - 5,097
%9 - XOWUAW
%9 - 38N
00°960°EEL G 1S - SI0IBAROXT BUIWOAM]
'afd 1SIMO1 HIYNOS
G31S3nDIY USAVM QILSANDIY HIAVM
%0} - S50} MOTIPA %Lt - Olre
%0°L - 3EM %1°L - JEM
%50 - M2Q
%E'| - 5.897
%0'9 - suing 9%6°E - XOWUAIN
%8'L - 38N %6°€ - 3aN
PASUCASIY
-UoN S| pig aso)oYL
‘vS1 # way Joj pasIy
SEM (B30 JO 30lid Hun ON
310N
S2LIBVIS LY $ 92°008'075°01 $ Z0'890°880°L 1 s [vioLl
, . . . ot . ot . UCHOSSIagU] GOIUOW-UBBIYSIIN J9a05 GaIouod)
05'269'S $| 05k $ | 006LP'T $| 00 00°096'¢ $ | 00’8 00°S9p's $|00L $ se 1408 asc151 pue weAeaxs Afseus ssewnsuon] S0
o . e . et . ent R . oIS 158 'UORIASISIU] BOIUON-UOAT ‘Je0nS|
00°028'vE s | oo $ | oo'osy'L2Z s { c0's 00°05P'1Z $ | 005 00°0€0°0¢ $| 002 $ 06Z'y 1408 | odce cioisas pue o ABioum o 20
OPIS 350M\), 'UORDSSIGIU) GOIUOI|
00°000'ZL $ | 000z $ | 00'000'9 $ | ooos 00°000'9 $ | coor 00°000'9 $ | 000} s 009 Hos U0k (%0€ = ¥ouQq) 19ans ¥ouq pue ajsud|  LOE
oS pue 3 :Abioul ‘o]
. . e ) ot . ot . . UGRSSSINU) SCIUCHHEd 18a8S|
00°00%'s $| oo $ | 00°00G'0b s | oo'ot 00'082's $ | 005 00°058'L $|00L $ 050°t 1408 |0 dee aicgsas pue o A6z o 008
- . e . . . . . OAd 9|
00°008 $ | oo'ov s | oooss $ | 0ove 00°008 $ | coor 00000°2 $ | oo'o0b $ 0z LN | uny ynpuco 39 o :ABroun o 68
000" . oot R} st ) vt . ONd .3 'POSESUS S8I5UGS)
00'000'9 $ | 00’001 $ | 00088’z $ | oo'ey 00°000'9 $ | oo'col 000082 $ | ooogh $ 038 L4 NIT Jueg onp 35 o ABisuz o 882
o . . i . . o . OAd Tl pasesus Jamus))
00'520°2 $ | oo'sel $ | 00°008°t $ 1 0002} 00'620'C $ | o0'sel 00°005'} $ | oo'oot s St 14 NP . o ABroug o 8
vioacy . ot , s . ot . . OAd W78 ‘Pestaus eauued)
00'008'y $ | oozt $ | ooooz'y $ | 00’50t 00'008'y $ | 000zt 00°000't $ | o000t s oy 14NN ‘JUBq 9P FO PRGSO ABieug siewnsuon| 96
.. , . ! sy . oo N OAQ W7 PISEOUS QL12UC),
00'008'0 $ | 0058 $ | 000rO'E $ | oo'se 00°008'9 $ | o0'se 00°009'6 $ | o002k $ 08 14 NI “Ueq 19Np 35 PRYSUCD ABreus stewnsuos 96
. . . § e ¥ . y OAd 961 'PISEIUL SAUGI)
60°00%'0Z $ | o00Lb $ | ooooL's $ | oo's9 00°00¥'02 $ | co'oLt 00°000'8} $ | oo'ost $ ozl 14NN ‘Jq NP 30 1NGsU0D ABloux sieumsuon| 6
[ . aral o . . . OAd .96 'PISEIU? GjaINI0D
00°082'8L $ | oo'eel $ | ooass'sy $ | ooze 00°082'LL $ | 00°SEl 00°096'08 $ | 000L $ 826 14NN Jueq 1P 30  ABisuz o €6
ey . iy ) ot , e . . OAd W9 'POSEdUs QaIdusd)
00°009't $ | 00'stE s | oo0z2's $| ooy 00°009'y $ | oo'stl 00'00p°9 $ | 00091 $ oy 14NN T » Afisouz o 2%
. . e . e . . . ONAd T ‘PISESUD SISO
00'059'L $ [ 0065 s | ooort’y $|o00Le 00059'} $ | 0055 00°00L'Z $ | 0006 $ oe 14 NI yueq P 30 5 :ABsoum ol V62
cera’ . T . crgt , et . . OAd 9T} 'PoSESUS FAISUGY)
00°628'002 $ | oo'svi $ | 0005269 $ [ o005 00°628'002 $ | oo'orl 00°05€'254 $ | co'ort $ SBe't 14N JUBq 1onp 30 PRasUOD ABreug siewnsuco| 96
V1oL 3olud LIND VIOL 3o18d LIND JvioL 3014d LIND V1oL 3918d LIND NVND LIND Wall, ‘ON
S130AQ00Y SUOLVAYIXZ NOLLONYLSNOD ALYWNILSI
B VONININYI YWENAG 0JS¥3NIC SHIINIONI W3Li

2oYl0 's,6u3 AID 18 We QO/EL/9 PO SPIg

SX'0T/2000\9eL PIENVL
(Jomag 3uny | Aleyues apiS 3) SAY S0IUOW 0} JSA PURIS Y] WO IS UBBILOIN SAY SOJUOW O}
aAY nedwed wol IS [ead 1S aBpUGMQIL JO N OGE 0} IS Head Woy SAY SONNOW J0 U0y




CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY
SMG - VAN ANDEL ARENA / GRAND CENTER

Period Ending May 30, 2000
Van Andel Arena Grand Center
Monthly Actual Budget Monthly Actual Budget
Events 11 7 Events 49 51
Attendance 60,491 53,000 Attendance 41,485 54,813
Direct Event Income $ 154965 101,459 Direct Event Income 153,061 116,973
Ancillary Income 160,926 89,798 Ancillary Income 17,867 55,150
Other Operating Income 124,550 132,261 Other Operating Income 6,287 5,375
Operating Expenses (260,000) (264,704) Operating Expenses (210,000) (198,054)
Net Income(Loss) 180,441 58,814 Net Income(Loss) (32,785) (20,556)
Year to Date Actual Budget Year to Date Actual Budget
Events 165 150 Events 417 391
Attendance 811,462 970,250 Attendance 556,636 598,131
Direct Event Income $ 1,197,606 1,413,912 Direct Event Income 1,550,944 1,430,065
Ancillary Income 1,411,008 1,599,831 Ancillary Income 638,005 619,747
Other Operating Income 1,423,007 1,454,850 Other Operating Income 112,439 59,125
Operating Expenses (2,758,217) (2,907,647) Operating Expenses (1,891,885)  (2,107,950)
Net Income(Loss) 1,273,404 1,560,946 Net Income(Loss) 409,503 987
Highlights Highlights

Kiss concert set Arena records for per cap novelty
spending at $14.81, and Food & Beverage spending
at $7.64.

The Arena hosted two nationally televised events
during May. WCW Monday Nitro (Live) on TNT, and
the Professional Bull Riders (Tape-Delay) on TNN.

Looking Forward

Tina Turner (w/Lionel Richie) will be at the Arena for
a sold out concert in June.

Red Hot Chili Peppers will be at the Arena for a sold
out concert in July with lead singer, and local native,
Anthony Kiedis.

The Grand Center hosted the state Republican
Convention.

Lou Rawls performed in DeVos Hall as a part of
the Symphony's Pops series.

Michigan Funeral Directors hosted their state wide
convention at the Grand Center.

Looking Forward

Grand Center will be hosting a National Train Collectors
convention during June.

Area native Al Green will be performing in Welsh Auditorium
in July.



SMG Operating Standards/Maintenance Manager

SMG Operating Standards/Maintenance Manager’s Main Screen I

A. Appearance of the Main Screen

performed by the program.

Following is a view of the Main screen along with descriptions of its various parts:

On the left side of the Main screen, there are three boxes — Categories, Sub-Categories and
Unit/System/Area. The Categories field lists the major system and equipment categories or
headings listed in the Table of Contents (FF&E, Life Safety, Electrical, etc). When a Category
is clicked and highlighted, the associated Sub-Categories as listed in the Table of Contents

Sub-Category highlighted. For example, if a facility has (3) boilers, all (3) will be listed in the
Unit/System/Area  field when  the Sub-Category  “Boilers” and  Category
“HVAC/Refrigeration” are highlighted.  Units, Systems and areas may be added, deleted or
duplicated for the Main screen using the buttons below the Category field.




BUILDING COMMITTEE REPORT
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
June 28, 2000

Progress Report Construction Manager — Erhadt Construction/Huber, Hunt & Nichols

The Construction Manager Reviewed Existing schematic design documents. Also
participated in design review sessions and met on Project Budget Development during
June.

Progress Report Materials Testing Consultants Inc

Geotechnical testing completed — 20 to 50 feet into bedrock. Except those under Hall of
Justice and Police Building, which are not scheduled for doing until Sept 2001. At
present compiling data to be completed by Aug 1, 2000.

Asbestos/Lead Sampling done in DeVos Hall, Welsh, Parking Ramp, Hall of Justice and
Police Department. Final report to be completed by July 10, 2000.

Environmental borings are complete with final report estimated to be complete by July
24, 2000.

Monroe Ave Project Update

Item VIII on Agenda of June 28, 2000 — Report by City Engineering with recommended
action by Authority.

Grand Center Expansion and Renovation

Design Development continues with Progressive AE and Ellerbe Bucket. Construction
Manager is working on Construction analysis, Cash-flow analysis, and Budget analysis,
which will be complete in December 2000. Value Engineering review taking place
between Architect’s, CM and Owner Representatives on entire project and will continue
through Design/Development which is to be completed in December 2000.

06/27/00



Meeting of the C/AA Finance Committee DR A F T
June 26, 2000
1. Call to Order - The meeting was called to order at 10:39 a.m. by Chair Birgit Klohs.

2. Attendance

Present: Mr. Clif Charles, Mr. Robert Herr, Ms. Birgit Klohs, Mayor John Logie, Mr.
David Waichum, Mr. Robert White

Others Present: Dale Sommers (C/AA Project Manager), Richard MacKeigan (SMG),
Chris Machuta (SMG), Jana Wallace (City of G.R. Fiscal Services), Karen Mendez
(Recording Secretary)

3. Welcome and Introductions from the Chair— Chair Birgit Klohs welcomed those present and
thanked the appointees for serving on this committee. She also thanked the County and the City
for the efforts of their staff members. Ms. Klohs reminded everyone this committee is subject to
the Open Meetings Act, and as such must follow the appropriate rules.

4. Comments from Audience Regarding Agenda Items - None

5. Charge to the Committee
Members reviewed the memorandum to the Chair from Robert White dated June 22, 2000
regarding the resolution of the CAA Board to create Finance and Operations Committees. Ms.
Klohs asked if there were any comments. Mayor Logie commented that the Finance Committee
will not set policy for the Convention/Arena Authority, rather they will make policy
recommendations to the C/AA Board.

6. Reconcile SMG Facility and C/AA 14-Month Operating Budgets
Mr. White referred to his memorandum to the Chair dated June 22, 2000 regarding funding of
the Capital Replacement Reserve. He explained that at the time of the construction of the
VanAndel Arena, the DDA created a policy to set up a Capital Replacement Reserve in the
amount of 1% of the cost of the building, to increase 3% each year. The Capital Replacement
Reserve has been used in the past for the purchase of items such as tables and chairs and the
addition of a storage room at the Arena. Mayor Logie explained that in 1996 this policy was
created in conjunction with Grand Action in the event the VanAndel Arena operated at a loss.
There is a $3 million cap on the Operating Reserve for operating losses. At the time of transfer
of ownership of the Arena to the C/AA, it is estimated there will be $1,055,000 available in the
Capital Replacement Reserve. Ms. Klohs asked where the Capital Replacement Reserve funds
are right now. Mr. White responded they are in a bank and will be transferred to the
Convention/Arena Authority as of July 1st. This transfer will amount to approximately $2222?
million from both the Operating and Capital Reserve Funds. Mr. White pointed out there is
enough cash flow to support the 14-month Operating Budget statement for the
Convention/Arena Authority, but there is not enough to fully fund the Capital Replacement
Reserve and to annually transfer $1 million to the Capital Construction sub-fund for a ten-year
period as pledged by the DDA for convention facility financing.

C/AA Finance Committee Meeting June 26, 2000
Page 1 of 4



v .

Mr. White stated this committee needs to establish funding priorities. Mayor Logie said he feels
the $1 million to the Capital Construction sub-fund should be the first priority. There is no
alternative source of funding for the $1 million.

Mr. Herr asked if we will be combining the funds for the Grand Center and VanAndel Arena.
Mr. White responded that the bookkeeper will do separate accounting for each facility, but that
the two facilities will operate from the same funds and combined statements will be presented to
the Finance Committee.

Mayor Logie asked that a recommendation be given as to the timing of the $1 million
contribution. Mr. Sommers commented that from the construction viewpoint there is not an
immediate need for the $1 million transfer and he feels the $20 million received from the State
should be allowed to generate interest until needed. The interest income was not anticipated.

Motion: Mayor Logie, supported by Robert Herr, moved to recommend to the full
Convention/Arena Authority Board that the SMG-generated Net Facility Income shall be

utilized in the following priority, listed from highest to lowest priority for application of
available balances:

Utility Invoices

Insurance Premiums (Property and D&O)

Legal/Bookkeeping/Auditing Invoices

Staff Services and Other CAA Administrative Expenses

Capital Improvement Financing — Assumed at $1 Million Per Annum for a Ten-
Year Period (FYO0I through FYI10 Inclusive) Based on Transfer of DDA Pledge
Jor Convention Facility Financing

F. Capital Replacement Reserve Funding — Based on 1% of Arena Construction
Cost Indexed at 5% Per Annum

SRCEOR S

Motion carried.

7. Review and Recommendation concerning Financial and Bookkeeping Policies
Mr. White reported that Beene Garter was hired to perform bookkeeping services for the C/AA
through 6/30/01. He noted he has drafted a Financial and Bookkeeping Policy for the C/AA.
Mr. Charles asked why $3,000 was chosen as the “not to exceed” amount for miscellaneous
invoices. Mr. White reported that he and Mr. Waichum together arrived at $3,000 as a
reasonable amount for these types of invoices. Mr. Sommers gave as an example of a
“miscellaneous” invoice the need for a service call to drain a sprinkling system before

underground utility work could begin; cost was $500 and was not anticipated but was necessary
in order to proceed.

Motion: Mr. Robert Herr, seconded by Mr. David Waichum, moved to recommend to the full

Convention/Arena Authority Board that the draft Financial and Bookkeeping Policy dated May
8, 2000 be adopted. Motion carried.

8. Review and Recommendation Concerning a Board Investment Policy
Mr. White stated this item has been provided for information only. Ms. Klohs stated it will be
tabled for action until the next scheduled meeting. Mr. White reported that a $20 million check
was received from the State of Michigan last week Wednesday, June 21¥. The check has been

C/AA Finance Committee Meeting June 26, 2000
Page 2 of 4




deposited with Old Kent Bank in an overnight sweep account and is earning 6.51% interest
(95% of the federal funds rate). Mr. White stated that one of the documents submitted by Old
Kent Bank with regards to C/AA investments involved the use of arbitration, which was
unacceptable to Mr. Richard Wendt, C/AA Special Counsel. Therefore, Old Kent Bank
attorneys are currently working with Mr. Wendt on this issue. M. White stated that the draft
Investment Policy provided today is not an overly aggressive policy. It was created from
information provided by the Government Finance Officer’s website, Old Kent Bank examples,
and City of Grand Rapids policy documents.

JUY
Item tabled until Jyne 20" meeting.

9. Monthly Financial Reports — VanAndel Arena and Grand Center
Mr. MacKeigan reported that the VanAndel Arena performed quite well for the month of April.

The last quarter of the fiscal year should be successful as well. He also reported that the Griffins
playoff game series generated six-figures.

Mr. MacKeigan also reports that the Grand Center is doing extremely well. The Sales Manager
at the facility has been very aggressive in seeking out smaller bookings and fitting them in
between the larger shows which are booked well in advance. Some of these smaller bookings,
particularly ticketed events at DeVos Hall, generate higher revenue.

There is no need at this time for the Financial Committee to recommend approval of the
financial reports. Such recommendation will become necessary after July I*.

10. Discussing Concerning Property Insurance Coverages/Deductibless ; 74 67 ST/
M. White explained that SMG is required to provide p}opefﬁiisurance on the facilities as part
of their contract obligation. In the past, the City has included the facilities on their property
insurance policy and billed SMG for the premiums. SMG has budgeted $54,074 for the
property premium, with a $250,000 deductible. Should the deductible be lowered to $50,000
the cost of premium would be $76,463. Mayor Logie stated he would prefer to see the larger
deductible remain, since in the event of a catastrophe the replacement costs would probably run
into the millions.

Motion: Mayor Logie, supported by Robert Herr, moved to recommend to the full Board of the
Convention/Arena Authority that the present property insurance deductible amount of $250,000
be retained, with a corresponding property premium of 854,074 to be paid annually for the
Grand Center, DeVos Hall, Welsh Auditorium and the VanAndel Arena. Motion carried.

11. Review and Approval of Pending Invoices gcLRnING OvE
M. White submitted a request for payment of invoice Meceived from Mr. Waichum, Kent
County Fiscal Services Director totaling $2,227,651.57. He explained that Kent County has
been paying the invoices on the’good faith they would be reimbursed once the funds became
available to the C/AA. At this time, the C/AA does not have a detailed project budget to
compare the invoices to.

M. Dale Sommers reported that $i¢ invoices will be given to the Finance Committee Chair to
review and sign prior to being given to the bookkeepers.

C/AA Finance Committee Meeting June 26, 2000
Page3of4



Motion: Robert Herr, supported by Robert White, moved to recommend to the full Board of the
Convention/Arena Authority that the request for payment of invoices totaling $2,227,651.57 ,wa.lJP”’ . o
received from Mr. David Waichum, Kent County Fiscal Services Director, be approved as g

presented. Motion carried.

12. Establishment of Future Committee Meeting Schedule
After some discussion, it was decided that Finance Committee meetings will be held the third

Tuesday of each month at 7:30 a.m. in the Kent County Commission Chambers, through
the end of the year 2000. _

13. General Public Comments — None.

14. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 11:35 a.m.

/Kim

C/AA Finance Committee Meeting June 26, 2000
Page4of4



CITY OF GRAND RARPIDS

DATE: May 9, 2000

TO: Steve Heacock _
Chair, Convention/Arena Authority

FROM:  RobertJ. White aﬁ)/
Assistant City Magager — Fiscal Services

SUBJECT: Convention/Arena Authority
Financial and Bookkeeping Policy

Attached you will find a recommended set of policies governing prior authorization to
sign Authority checks. This policy statement is intended to balance, what I believe to be,
the Authority’s need to give timely approval for disbursements of monies held in the

Authority depository with their responsibility concerning prudent management of
finances. '

This policy statement was reviewed and approved by Dave Waichum, County Finance
Director, Daryl Delabbio, County Administrator, and Kurt Kimball, City Manager.
Together, we recommend adoption of this first policy statement goveming financial and
bookkeeping activities of the Convention/Arena Authority.

RIW/kim
Attachment

cc: Dave Waichum
‘Kurt Kimball
Daryl Delabbio

C:\My Documents\CONVENTION FACILITIES\05090003.doc



CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
FINANCIAL AND BOOKKEEPING POLICY
FIRST DRAFT
MAY 8,2000

All checks written for payment of invoices submitted to the Authority ‘shall be first approved by
the full Authority Board, with the following exceptions:

Operations:

Based on the Authority’s prior adoption of an annual operating/capital replacement
budget, checks are authorized to provide for payment of:

Utilities (electric, gas, steam, water/sewer) _
Legal/Bookkeeping/Auditing Services (if within prior contract approval)
SMG Annual Incentive Fee (as provided in contract)

Other Miscellaneous Invoices With A Not to Exceed Limit of $3,000

Construction:

Based on the Authority’s prior approval of a project construction budget allowance and
award of contract(s), checks are authorized to provide for payment of:

e Within project site - interim payment invoices as approved by the Owner’s
Representative (currently either/or Jim Gray/Dale Summers)

e Within public right of way — interim progress invoices as approved by the City
Engineer or his designated representative.

Other Provisions:

e The bookkeeper will accept and process invoices, including preparation of checks.

e The bookkeeper will accept direction from only one person, as designated in the
Authority Board minutes.

e Checks will be written and dated the 14% and the 28" of each month
e Checks will be signed by not less than two authorized persons _
¢ The monthly financial report shall include a detailed listing of all checks written,

including name of payee, amount, date, and a brief description of materials
acquired/services rendered.

C:\My Documents\CONVENTION FACILITIES\05090002.doc



CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
INVESTMENT POLICY

To comply with Act 20 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1943, as amended

I. Purpose

It is the policy of the Convention/Arena Authority to invest its funds in a manner which will
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash
flow needs of the Convention/Arena Authority, and comply with all State statutes governing the
investment of public funds.

II. Scope

This policy applies to all financial assets of the Convention/Arena Authority. These assets are
accounted for in the Operating, Capital Replacement Reserve and Capital Improvement Funds
and any new fund established by the Convention/Arena Authority.

HI.Objectives

The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be safety, liquidity, and
yield:

A. Safety Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of
capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest
rate risk.

1. Credit Risk The Convention/Arena Authority will minimize credit risk, the

risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer, by:

¢ Limiting investments to the safest types of securities

e Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and
advisers with which the Convention/Arena Authority will do business

¢ Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual
securities will be minimized

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEE\INVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001.doc

Page 1 of 4



2. Interest Rate Risk The Convention/Arena Authority will minimize the risk
that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in
general interest rates, by:

e Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell
securities on the open market prior to maturity

o Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities.

B. Liquidity The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all
operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by
structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet
anticipated demands (static liquidity). Furthermore, since all possible cash demands
cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active
secondary or resale markets (dynamic liquidity).

C. Yield The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a
market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the
investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary
importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. The core of
investments are limited to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair
return relative to the risk being assumed. Securities shall not be sold prior to maturity
with the following exceptions:

e A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize loss of principal
e A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target duration in the portfolio
e Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold

IV.Standards of Care

A. Prudence The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the
“prudent person” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall
portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this
investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal

_ responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided
deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and the liquidity and the
sale of securities are carried out in accordance with the terms of this policy.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probably safety
of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEE\INVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001 .doc

Page 2 of 4



B. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Officers and employees involved in the investment
process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper
execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability
to make impartial decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose any
material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business. They shall
further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from
undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom
business is conducted on behalf of the Convention/Arena Authority.

C. Delegation of Authority Management responsibility for the investment program is
hereby delegated to the Treasurer, who shall establish written procedures and internal
controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment
policy. Procedures should include references to: safekeeping, delivery vs. payment,
investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements,
collateral/depository agreements, and banking service contracts. No person may engage
in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy, and the
procedures established by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be responsible for all
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities
of subordinate officials.

V. Suitable and Authorized Investment

(1)  The Treasurer is limited to investments authorized by Act 20 of 1943, as amended, and
may invest in the following:

A. Bonds, securities and other obligations of the United States, or an agency or
instrumentality of the United States

B. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a
financial institution, but only if the financial institution complies with subsection (2)

- C. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest classifications
established by not less than two standard rating services, and the debt matures not more
than 270 days after the date of purchase

D. Repurchase agreements consisting of instruments listed in the subdivision (letter A.)

E. Bankers acceptances of United States banks

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEE\INVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001.doc

Page 30f 4



(2) A public corporation that invests its funds under subsection (1) shall not deposit or invest
the funds in a financial institution that is not eligible to be a depository of funds belonging to the
State under a law or rule of this State, or the United States.

VI. Safekeeping and Custody

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements and financial institution
deposits, entered into by the Treasurer shall be on a cash basis. Securities may be held by a third
party custodian designated by the Treasurer, and evidenced by safekeeping receipts as
determined by the Treasurer.

VII. Reporting

The Treasurer shall prepare an investment report at least quarterly, including a management
summary that provides an analysis of the status of the current investment portfolio and
transactions made over the last quarter. This management summary will be prepared in a manner
which will allow the Convention/Arena Authority to ascertain whether investment activities
during the reporting period conform to the investment policy. The report will be provided to the
full Board of the Convention/Arena Authority.

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEE\INVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001 .doc

Page 4 of 4



DATE: June 26, 2000

TO: Birgit Klohs
The Right Place Program
FROM: Robert White /{

Fiscal Services Djrector
SUBJECT: Additional pending invoice
On Friday afternoon, the Kent County Fiscal Services Director delivered certain
additional bills for which the County wishes to be reimbursed.
The attached listing includes the reimbursement request from Kent County and

should be submitted for the committee’s review and approval rather than the listing
in the agenda package.

Attachment

Jjmwcaaaddinv.doc




00£290 Mwf Spx'a9joAu|00-unfeed

juswAed 10} papiwqng sadloAu] [E30L 16'159'L22'C $

92°'82y'v66 juay jo fHuno)
1030811 SI2IAISS [e9814 AJunod Jus) £q papiwgns s3d10AU]

000Z Aely niy) 6661 Joquiaydag woly sosuadxd 10} Juswasinquiisy 000Z/£2/90

Jeauibug K19 Aq pepiugns sadIoAU] - [€301-GNS  _68°16°10S
0002 |udy - uoRIsInboe 3)IS 0} paje|al S3JIAIeS [eéan 0002/01/50 87'626'c uospieydLY B SI9UIBIM MET
000Z YoJep - uonisinboe ayis 0} pajeja) sadiAes [eba 0002/90/¥0 GL'GeS'y uospieYOlY g SISUIBIM MET
000z Aienigad - uolisinboe ajis 0} paje|el SadlAISs |eba 0002/01/€0 08'696'C uospieydry ’g SISUIB3M MET
Buide}-oapiA ajis uoionJisuodaid 000Z/2L1¥0 00°0S2 suononpold Jadiny
0002 A - seoines Bupasuibus Jeqy / 81qed 0002/80/90 00°098't ouj yosi039
0002 Idy aje| - saoines Buuaauibus Jaqy / 2|qeD 0002/51/50 00'690°L ou] yo808n
0002 |udy Ales pue ydsej\ - S8dIAISS Buussuibue saqy / 2|1qeD 0002/52/¥0 00'680°LS ou} Yyo9j039
anuaAy EMERQ O} SUOHEDIUNWILOISS) pue Bunybi) 1ea1s a1ed0|19Y 0002/52/S0 09°CTL9'LL ouj au0e(3 LIAQ
0002 YoJeN - UoHED0[S) AN SNUSAY S0JUO O} pajejal Sa0IAISS [eban 000¢/82/v0 00'scl O71d BuM uosupdia
000Z Y2Jel - uonesolas Ajljin aNUSAY S0JUON JO} Buusaubuz 0002/91/50 £6'V16'€6 yojeaA pue Yoeld
0002 Atenigad - uoieoojal Ajin anuUsAY S0JUON 10} Buusauibul 0002/02/¥0 12°L0.'68 yojeaA pue xoelg
000z Asenuep - uoeosoial AN 8NUSAY S0JUOW JOj Buussulbul 000¢/.2/€0 #.°000'L9 yolesA pue xoeig
6661 Joqwadaq - uoneoojal AN SNUSAY S0JUON 10} Buussuibug 000Z/22/€0 26°218°'LS yojeaA pue xoeig
6661 JOqWaAON - uoijedojal A)|lin SnusAY S0IUO 1o} Bunaaulbuz 0002/20/€0 9¢'888'Gl yoleaA pue xoelg
Jaauibug Ao Aq payiuqng SadjoAu]
sobeueyy 109(0id Aq pepqng Sadl0AU| - [B101-ANS  _2¥'B0ELEL
000Z Ae - seo1Ales Juswabeuew 1o3fold 0002/1.0/90 00°000't7L H 8leQ 's;owwos
0002 udy - seolales Juawabeuew 10aloid 0002/10/S0 00°000'71 H 9leq ‘'s;awwos
0002 A - seoiAles ubisap [einjosliydiy 0002/50/90 £€2'195'vel 3v aAissabold
0002 udy - S301AI8S UBisap [esnjoaliydly 0002/60/50 61°95¥'€0€ 3y oAissabold
000z UoJel - Bunsa} ayis Jayjo @ ‘|eouyos)oalb ‘leuswuoiiAug 0002/12/¥0 oy'L28'LS sjueynsuog Buyse s|eusieiN
000z Judy - Bunse} ays Jay1o 3 ‘[eoiuyos)oab ‘leuswuoliAug 0002/51/50 65°G0.'06 sjuejjnsuo) Bunsal sieusieiN
S3OIAISS UOIJONJISUOD-Bid 0002/22/50 00°000'12} uny - preyy
Juswoealbe uoneoojas Jamas al1 saoiAes [eba 6661/62/01 0009 971d BuUM uosudIa
suopeayipow Buipjing eze|d Jopied 0002/91/50 G9'269'}1 Buipiing eze|d J8pied
Jabeueyy j0oford Aq papjwqng SaJ0AU|
PoAI293l S8OJAI9S | palinboe sjeldjew Jo uopduosag ajeq junowy aalAed
99]0AU]

0002 ‘8Z aunf uo juswAed 10} S82I0AU] JO 1817
ALIMOH.LNY VNIV / NOILNIANOOD ALNNOD IN3A - Sdidvy ANVYHO



CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

DATE: June 27, 2000

TO: Steve Heacock, Chair
Convention/Arena Authority

FROM:  Robert White £
Fiscal Services Director

SUBJECT: Non-Corporate Account Authorization for Authority Investments

The attached document was recently provided by a representative from Old Kent Bank.
This additional document seeks designation of an authorized individual(s) that the bank
may take instructions from concerning investment of Authority funds.

This document has been reviewed and approved in form by legal counsel Richard Wendt
from Dickinson, Wright.

I ask your indulgence in considering a suspension of the rules at the Authority meeting on

June 28" and consideration of this resolution, along with designation of md1v1dual(s)
authorized to approve Authority investments.

RIW/kIm

Attachment

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEE\06270001.doc




OLD KENT SECURITIES CORPORATION

NON-CORPORATE ACCOUNT AUTHORIZATION

To Whom It May Concern:

The Organization named herein, , (the

“Orgamzatlon) authorizes and requests you to open an account in its name for the purpose of purchasing,

investing in or otherwise acquiring, selling, and generally dealing in and with all forms of securities within
the guidelines of your Request for Proposal.

By resolution duly and regularly adopted and still in effect, the fullest authority at all times has been
invested in or. or any of them with
respect to any transactions deemed by any of them to be proper in connection with said account, including
(but without limitation thereof) authority to give written or oral instructions to you as broker with respect to
such transactions, and generally to do and take all action necessary in connection with the account or
considered desirable by said officer or agent with respect thereto. You, as broker, are authorized

thereunder and hereby to deal with any and all persons by the said resolution empowered or through
dealing with the Organization itself.

You may, upon request to the Organization, obtain a true copy of said resolution and specimen signatures
to each person empowered under said resolution and evidence satisfactory to you of the existence of the
Organization and of its power to enter into this agreement; and it is certified herewith that said

Organization does possess such powers and authority and that the same is not limited by the charter or by-
laws or by other conflicting resolutions.

The Organization is required to certify you promptly, when and as made, any changes in the officers or
powers of persons authorized, and such notification, when received by you, shall be adequate both to
terminate the powers of the persons theretofore authorized and to empower the persons thereby substituted.

Pursuant to the aforesaid resolutions and hereunder, the powers and authority granted shall continue fully
effective until receipt by you of written notice of change or rescission thereof.

Signatures of Authorized Officers or Agents:

Very truly yours,

By:

(Head of Organization and Title)

Attest:
(Secretary or Other Authorized Person)

Account carried with Fiserv Securities, Inc. Member NYSE/NASD/SIPC



THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF
PUBLIC/CONSUMER SHOWS
TO METROPOLITAN COMMUNITIES

SHOWSPAN, INCORPORATED
GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN
2000



MAJOR PUBLIC SHOWS
ARE INSTITUTIONS

The major consumer events produced at convention centers serve to bring the focus of the region's
inhabitants to the area’s economic “capital” city. These public marketing expositions bring to the region
a collection of manufacturers, retailers and specialists that assemble only once a year in any metropolitan
area. In fact, these events are one of the hallmarks of a major population center.

A public/consumer show must do the following to fulfill its’ role as a nationally recognized exposition
serving the regional market:

Utilize a minimum of 100,000 net square feet of exhibition space, 200,000 is preferred.
Define and fulfill the show’s theme, i.e., boating, outdoor sports, home and garden.
Cater to the interest of a large portion of the regional population.

Succeed at attracting the prime local retailers within the show aspect as exhibitors.

Command the attention and exhibits of national manufacturers and suppliers working in concert with
the local retailers present.

Involve related clubs, associations and interest groups with fund raising and/or exposure
opportunities.

Maintain a balance and breadth of exhibits that bring the “cutting edge” products, technologies and
services to the attending public.

Present a clean, sensually appealing, safe show for a good day’s experience for the patron.

Provide current and interesting seminar and workshop speakers from regional to international
backgrounds.

Represent the region proudly to attendees and exhibitors from outside the region.

With these points accomplished, the public’s respect and participation will fuel the success of the
particular consumer show and provide a showcase for the community.

Powerful, nationally recognized consumer shows are as important to a metropolitan area’s community
offerings as its sport teams, museums, symphonies or concerts.



Statistical Profile
Grand Rapids’ “Big Four”

Public Shows
Michigan Grand Center | West Michigan Grand Center Totals
International Auto| Boat Show Home & Garden | Sport, Fishing &
Show Show Travel Show

Square Footage of
Grand Center 117,000 £ (all) | 117,000 £ (all) | 117,000 f2 (all) | 117,000 £’ (all) ALL
Utilized
Show Days open
to the public 4 6 4 4 18
# of Exhibitors* 85 113 268 268 752
Local Retailers as
Exhibitors* 50 81 185 60 376
Non-Local
Exhibitors* 35 32 83 226 376
Attendance* 51,500 25,000 28,350 32,000 136,850
Attendance from
outside of Kent 21,900 13,750 12,500 20,500 68,650
County*
Total Advertising
& Promotional $150,000+ $120,000+ $120,000+ $120,000+ $510,000+
Campaign

* 3 year average (2 year — Auto Show)




SHOWSPAN, INC.

Our company has produced public consumer shows for over 55 years, starting with the West
Michigan Sportland Boat Show. The archives of photographs and news articles are a chronicle
of some of Grand Rapids’ most enduring traditions. In 2000 our schedule included the “Big
Four” of public shows; the Auto Show, Boat Show, Home Show and Sport Show.

Businessmen, boaters and sportsmen of all ages have fond memories of their involvement in
these shows over the years. Many lives have been touched; some as families growing their
businesses by participating as exhibitors and millions as attendees that bought their first boat or
designed the family room at one of the shows.

Grand Rapids has emerged into a new era, and so have the Grand Center Public Shows. Both
Grand Rapids and ShowSpan have kept up with the times. We are both recognized on a national
level.

Major Metropolitan Convention Centers serve many functions. Accordingly, the producers of the
many events must share the facility. It is critical that community leaders understand the social
and economic benefits of all functions. Simply filling Hotel rooms and restaurants with “out-of-
towners” does not boost the overall employment or quality of life in a broad or pervasive fashion.

We ask that you take a few minutes to review this package.

We present:
¢ A definition of Major Public Shows as Institutions

¢ A statistical profile of the “Big Four” public shows that define them as shows of
Class A size and reach.

¢ A sampling of Economic Impact Studies prepared for comparable shows in
comparable markets.

Our conclusion is that Grand Rapids should be proud of itself and the quality consumer shows
that it supports.

We hope that you agree.



